
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, August 14, 2012                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER  
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Northern Gateway Area Study Presentation “Covington Developable Parcel Inventory,” 
Robert Thorpe, R.W. Thorpe & Associates, Inc. (20 minutes) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  July 10, 2012 Special & Regular Meeting and July 24, 2012 Regular Meeting 

Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept Department of Ecology Grant and Award Construction Contract for Aqua Vista 

Drainage Improvements (Akramoff) 
C-4. Accept Covington Water District Easement Agreement (Lyons) 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss Planning Commission Recommendation on Proposed 2012 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendments (Hart) 
2. Northern Gateway Progress Report (Hart) 
3. 2012 Second Quarter Financial Report (Parker) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  August 14, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JULY 10, 2012 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AND JULY 24, 2012 CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES   

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the July 10, 2012 City Council Special & 
Regular Meeting Minutes and July 24, 2012 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 10, 2012 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Special & Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, July 10, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
INTERVIEWS – 6:15-7:00 P.M.: 
The Council conducted interviews for openings on the Covington Economic Development 
Council.  Applicants interviewed included Laura Roth, Jim Hutchinson, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, July 10, 
2012, at 7:10 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; 
Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLICATION COMMUNICATION: 
 Council presented a proclamation to Leslie Hamada as the 2012 Honorary Citizen of the 

Year, proclaiming Sunday, July 22, 2012, as Leslie Hamada Day in the city of 
Covington. 
 

 Council presented a proclamation to Jeff Wagner as the 2012 Citizen of the Year, 
proclaiming Saturday, July 21, 2012, as Jeff Wagner Day in the city of Covington. 
 

Council recessed from 7:13 to 7:31 p.m. for a brief reception for the citizen of the year and the 
honorary citizen of the year. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

2 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 10, 2012 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 2 

Ray Markley, 21832 SE 245th Street, Maple Valley, spoke regarding the 176TH Place SE 
Right-of Way Vacation and expressed his dissatisfaction with both the process and the outcome. 
 
Chele Dimmett, 26626 190th Avenue SE, Covington, invited public to Timberlane Trash and 
Bash on Saturday, July 14, with clean up occurring from 8 a.m. to noon followed by a picnic and 
children’s activities. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Approval of Vouchers:  Vouchers #27879-27939, in the Amount of $1,520,186.81, Dated 

June 26, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000605561-1000605576 and Paylocity 
Payrolls Checks #1000605579-1000605580 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in 
the Amount of $147,614.89, Dated July 6, 2012. 

 
C-2. Approve Bonneville Power Administration Land Use Agreement. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 10-12 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NO. 17-11 
 

C-3. Amend Ordinance Committing Revenue from Development Services and Parks and 
Recreation Funds. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda as amended.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Public Testimony and Possible Action on Resolution to Surplus City Property. 
 
Senior Planner Salina Lyons gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the public hearing and called for public comments. 
 
Michael Crowson, Covington Investments II Manager, 11711 SE 8th Street, Bellevue 98005, 
stated that Covington Investments II is in favor of the surplusing of this property so it can be 
purchased and re-developed consistent with the current zoning code and development guidelines. 
 
Ray Markley, 21832 SE 245th Street, Maple Valley, asked Council to sell him surplus property 
adjacent to his property as the city was taking 15 feet off his property to widen the road. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public hearing comment period. 
 
 

3 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 10, 2012 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DECLARING CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY KNOWN AS “PORTIONS OF SE 270TH ST.” 
(PARCEL NOS. 3780400020 AND 3780400030) AND THE 
“JUNE ESTATES STORMWATER TRACT” (PARCEL 
3780400130) AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THEIR SALE 
BY THE CITY MANAGER. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 12-08 declaring certain real property known as “portions of SE 270th 
St.” (Parcel Nos. 3780400020 and 3780400030) and the June Estates stormwater tract” 
(Parcel 3780400130) as surplus and authorizing the city manager to negotiate and enter 
into an agreement with Covington Investments LLC for purchase of the surplused 
properties.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Consider 176th Place SE Right-of-Way Vacation. 
 
Senior Planner Salina Lyons gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions, and Ms. Lyons provided responses. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 11-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON APPROVING 
A PETITION TO VACATE APPROXIMATELY 80 FEET OF 
THE SOUTHEASTERNLY PORTION OF 176TH PLACE SE, 
ADJACENT TO SE WAX ROAD 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to pass 
Ordinance No. 11-12 approving the petition to vacate approximately 80 feet of the 
southeastern portion of 176th Place SE, adjacent to SE Wax Road with the conditions in the 
hearing examiner’s recommendation to the city council dated May 23, 2012, and directing 
the city manager to enter into an agreement with Covington Investments LLC for purchase 
of the vacated right-of-way adjacent to the city’s surplused stormwater facility.  Vote:  
Vote:  6-1.  (Voting yes:  Harto, Lanza, Mhoon, Snoey, Scott, and Wagner; voting no:  
Lucavish).  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Consider Appointments to Covington Economic Development Council. 
 
Councilmember Wagner recused himself from this item. 

 

4 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 10, 2012 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 4 

Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
appoint Laura Roth to fill Position No. 4 on the Covington Economic Development Council 
with a term expiring July 31, 2014.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lucavish moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
appoint Jim Hutchinson to fill Position No. 6 on the Covington Economic Development 
Council with a term expiring July 31, 2014.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
appoint Jeff Wagner to fill Position No. 7 on the Covington Economic Development Council 
with a term expiring July 31, 2014.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Adopt Human Services Commission Master Plan. 
 
Personnel and Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided complimentary comments on the report. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Harto moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to adopt the 
Human Services Master Plan.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
5.  Options for Viewing Meeting Presentations. 
 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant Sharon Scott gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to research and make the 
selection between monitors, increased memory of the existing laptops, or some other viable 
option for viewing meeting presentations.  Council also concurred that it was against any 
options that involved monitors hanging from the Council Chambers ceiling. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson requested Council direction for staff as to placing an item on an 
upcoming agenda regarding Mr. McCain’s fence request. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
reaffirm previous Council decision and not place Mr. McCain’s fence request on a future 
agenda.  Vote:  4-3 (Voting yes:  Harto, Mhoon, Scott, and Wagner; voting no:  Lanza, 
Lucavish, and Snoey).  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
 

5 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 10, 2012 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 5 

Ray Markley, 21832 SE 245th Street, Maple Valley, expressed his displeasure in Council’s 
decision and asked Council to direct staff to work on a solution with him. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 
 
 

6 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 24, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 1 

 
City of Covington 

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, July 24, 2012 

 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, July 24, 
2012, at 7:00 p.m., with Mayor Pro Tem Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Margaret Harto. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Scott Thomas, Parks 
& Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Wagner seconded to 
excuse Mayor Harto.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
 Tom Washington, SR516 Corridor Study Project Manager with the Washington State 

Department of Transportation, gave a presentation on the SR516 Corridor Study 
including overview, background, study goals and objectives, corridor working group, 
safety analysis, modeling, traffic volumes, intersections analyzed, corridor segment 
analysis – traffic speeds, railroad analysis, Moving Washington, summary of 
recommendations, and next steps. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Pro Tem Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
 

7 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 24, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 2 

 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  June 26, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers #27940-28001, in the Amount of $118,381.53, Dated July 9, 2012; and 

Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000626794-1000626814 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct 
Deposits in the Amount of $152,904.56, Dated July 20, 2012. 
 

C-3. Contract Amendment for Street Sweeping. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Lucavish moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Vice Chair Fran McGregor-Hollums reported on the July 12 
meeting. 

: 

 
Arts Commission – Secretary Gini Cook reported on the July 12 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Community Development Director Richard Hart reported on the July 
19 meeting; the July 4 meeting was canceled. 
 
Budget Priorities Advisory Committee – City Manager Derek Matheson reported on the July 
18 meeting; the July 5 meeting was canceled. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the June 28 meeting. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – No report.  The July 18 meeting was canceled. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  
1. Public Testimony and Possible Action on Medical Marijuana Moratorium Extension. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner opened the public hearing and called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Pro Tem Wagner closed the public hearing. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-12 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 
08-11 TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM ON THE 
ESTABLISHMENT, LOCATION, OPERATION, LICENSING, 
MAINTENANCE, OR CONTINUATION OF MEDICAL 
MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES, PRODUCTION FACILITIES, 

8 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 24, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 3 

PROCESSING FACILITIES, AND COLLECTIVE GARDENS 
WITHIN THE CITY OF COVINGTON FOR AN ADDITIONAL 
SIX MONTHS; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
MORATORIUM EXTENSION; AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 
08-11; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT SUPPORTING THE 
MORATORIUM ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE NO. 08-11; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 12-12 providing for a six-month extension to the existing moratorium 
on medical marijuana collective gardens, production and processing facilities, dispensaries, 
and related businesses.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
2.  Amend Multifamily Tax Exemption Ordinance to Add Condominiums. 
 
Councilmembers discussed and provided comments. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 13-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON AMENDING 
CHAPTER 3.80 OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATING TO EXEMPTIONS FROM AD VALOREM 
PROPERTY TAXATION FOR MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING IN 
DESIGNATED RESIDENTIAL TARGETED AREAS TO 
INCLUDE OWNER-OCCUPIED MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
amend CMC 3.80 to allow exemptions from ad valorem property taxation for owner-
occupied multi-family housing in designated residential targeted areas.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion 
carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson asked Council for a representative to the lobbyist selection 
committee.  Council selected Councilmember Mhoon with Mayor Pro Tem Wagner as an 
alternate. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Pro Tem Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 

9 of 109



Unapproved Draft – July 24, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  August 14, 2012 
 

 4 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

10 of 109



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  August 14, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #28002-28003, in the Amount of $1,685.28, Dated July 18, 
2012; Vouchers #28004-28063, in the Amount of $435,345.01, Dated July 23, 2012; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000655309-1000655326 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits 
in the Amount of $153,007.59, Dated August 3, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #28002-28003, in the Amount 
of $1,685.28, Dated July 18, 2012; Vouchers #28004-28063, in the Amount 
of $435,345.01, Dated July 23, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000655309-1000655326 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $153,007.59, Dated August 3, 2012. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

11 of 109



12 of 109



13 of 109



14 of 109



15 of 109



16 of 109



17 of 109



18 of 109



19 of 109



20 of 109



21 of 109



22 of 109



23 of 109



 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  August 14, 2012 

 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT 

WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY AND AWARD A CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT TO IMPROVE STREET DRAINAGE ON SE 268TH STREET IN THE 
AQUA VISTA NEIGHBORHOOD (ALONG PIPE LAKE). 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Engineering Estimate from Gray & Osborne 
2. DOE Stormwater Grant 

 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:  
In March of 2010, Council authorized beginning the design process to address a drainage issue 
on SE 268th Street in the Aqua Vista neighborhood (Pipe Lake).  Residents in the area had 
complained of street drainage running onto their property and exacerbating a flooding problem.  
Upon further inspection, it was determined that when the road was first built (1960’s) the grading 
of the roadway was not completed as planned.  It appears that it is a problem now because over 
the years ditches have been filled in and material (dirt, bark, etc.) built up from landscaping and 
home improvement projects that have gradually changed the course of the drainage to where it is 
concentrating onto individual properties.   
 
Staff initially attempted to calculate some grades and determine if maintenance could take care 
of the problem.  However, we realized that even if we restored things to where they were before, 
there were no easements to support where the water was being sent since the initial grading 
(1960’s) caused the drainage to go in the opposite direction from the approved drainage plan.  
Therefore, Gray & Osborne (G & O) developed plans to address the drainage issue and improve 
the water quality being released to Pipe Lake. 
 
This capital project will install storm drainage pipe and catch basins along SE 268th Street and 
convey storm water to outfall to Pipe Lake along the original platted drainage easement.  Prior to 
discharging to Pipe Lake, the stormwater will go through a vault containing filter cartridges to 
improve water quality.  The project will overlay the roadway to provide proper slope to the catch 
basins which will also address the failing asphalt in this area.  
 
In the summer of 2011, we requested bids from contractors using the Municipal Research and 
Services Center Small Works Roster.  All bids we received were higher than the Engineer’s 
estimate and we did not have the funds to continue with the project at that time.   
 
Since then, we have applied for and have been offered a $136,220 grant from the Department of 
Ecology Statewide Stormwater Grant Program.  Attachment 2 provides additional detail 
regarding the grant.  The grant letter from DOE mentions the final amount awarded being based 

24 of 109



on negotiations regarding project scope.  We have since met with DOE and were awarded the 
full $136,220.  Thus we are requesting that the Covington City Council authorize the City 
Manager to sign a grant agreement with the Department of Ecology to allow us to use the 
$136,220 for this project.   
 
On July 26, 2012, we again requested bids from contractors using the Municipal Research and 
Services Center Small Works Roster.  The bids are due by August 13, 2012.  We are also 
requesting that Covington City Council authorize the City Manager to award a contract to the 
lowest most qualified bidder if the bid is within the engineer’s estimate.  Results of the bid will 
be provided at the Council meeting.   The project is expected to begin after Labor Day and be 
completed in six to eight weeks. 
  
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not to authorize awarding the contract and delay the project for another year.  This will require 
maintenance to continue to redirect drainage with temporary measures such as sandbags. 
 
Not signing the grant agreement with the Department of Ecology will result in losing $136,220 
to fund this project. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
During the 2009 Budget process, Council approved an annual allocation of $53,500 to be 
directed towards SWM Capital Improvement Projects out of the SWM Fund.  In 2009, we used 
those funds along with some grant funds to complete the modifications/repairs to the Wood 
Creek Storm Pond.  
 
The 2010, 2011 and 2012 allocations of $53,500 were each allocated to design and construct this 
project.   The King County Flood Control Opportunity Grant Funds for 2010 ($19,406), 2011 
($19,759) and 2012 ($19,560) were also committed to this project.  The design contract with      
G & O was in the amount of $46,800.  The Engineer’s estimate for construction is in the amount 
of $233,270.  See table below for details: 
 

  
2010 Balance (Remaining from 2009 Project)  $4,311 
2010 SWM Transfer for SWM Capital $53,500 
2011 SWM Transfer for SWM Capital $53,500 
2012 SWM Transfer for SWM Capital $53,500 
2010 King County Flood Control Opportunity Grant $19,406 
2011 King County Flood Control Opportunity Grant $19,759 
2012 King County Flood Control Opportunity Grant $19,560 
2012 Ecology Stormwater Grant  $136,220 
  
G & O Design Contract ($46,800) 
Construction Contract based on Engineer’s Estimate ($233,270) 
Construction Contingency (10%) ($23,000) 
Surveying and Construction Support (G & O) ($7,500) 
  

Total $49,186 

25 of 109



 
The addition of the grant has allowed nearly the entire 2012 SWM Transfer for SWM Capital to 
not be needed for this project. The balance will be applied to the next Stormwater CIP project. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:            Ordinance          Resolution      X    Motion        Other 
  

Council member _____________ moves, Council member________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a grant agreement with 
the Department of Ecology that will provide $136,220 for the construction of 
the SE 268th Street Drainage Maintenance Project.  
 
Council member _____________ moves, Council member________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with the lowest 
most qualified bidder to construct the SE 268th Street Drainage Maintenance 
Project if the bid is within the engineer’s estimate. 

 
REVIEWED BY:   City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

26 of 109



Att. 1 - Engineers Estimate Page 1 of 2

CITY OF COVINGTON
SE 268TH STREET DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE PROJECT

ENGINEER'S PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE - UPDATED JUNE 14, 2012
G &O #10445

ITEM ESTIMATED UNIT
NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT
1. Minor Changes (1-04.4(1)) 1 MC $1,000.00 $1,000.00
2. SPCC Plan (S.P. 1-07.15(1)) 1 LS $750.00 $750.00
3. Mobilization, Cleanup, and Demobilization (S.P. 1-09.7) 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00
4. Project Temporary Traffic Control (1-10.4(1)) 1 LS $7,500.00 $7,500.00
5. Clearing and Grubbing (S.P. 2-01.5) 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00
6. Removal of Structure and Obstruction (S.P. 2-02.5) 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00
7. Subgrade Repair Excavation Incl. Haul (S.P. 2-06.5) 50 SY $70.00 $3,500.00
8. Locate Existing Utilities (S.P. 2-09.5) 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00
9. Gravel Backfill for Drains (S.P. 2-09.5) 30 TN $30.00 $900.00
10. Controlled Density Fill (S.P. 2-09.5) 5 CY $250.00 $1,250.00
11. Crushed Surfacing Top Course (S.P. 4-04.5) 190 TN $20.00 $3,800.00
12. Commercial HMA (S.P. 5-04.5) 200 TN $100.00 $20,000.00
13. Planing Bituminous Pavement (S.P. 5-04.5) 70 SY $12.00 $840.00
14. Wood Dock Modifications (S.P. 6-04.5) 1 LS $3,500.00 $3,500.00
15. PVC UnderdrainPipe 12 In. Diam. (S.P. 7-01.5) 60 LF $45.00 $2,700.00
16. PVC Storm Sewer Pipe 12 In. Diam. (Incl. Bedding) (S.P. 7-04.5) 560 LF $45.00 $25,200.00
17. Catch Basin Type 1 (S.P. 7-05.5) 3 EA $1,000.00 $3,000.00
18. Concrete Inlet (S.P. 7-05.5) 5 EA $900.00 $4,500.00
19. Catch Basin Type 2 60" Dia. w/ Separator (S.P. 7-05.5) 2 EA $10,000.00 $20,000.00
20. Storm Treatment Catch Basin Type 2 72" Dia. (S.P. 7-05.5) 2 EA $38,000.00 $76,000.00
21. Adjust Catch Basin (S.P. 7-05.5) 1 EA $400.00 $400.00
22. Removal of Unsuitable Material (Trench) (S.P. 7-08.5) 10 CY $30.00 $300.00
23. Trench Excavation Safety Systems (S.P. 7-08.5) 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00
24. Bank Run Gravel for Trench Backfill (S.P. 7-08.5) 410 TN $22.00 $9,020.00
25. Temporary Erosion Control (S.P. 8-01.5) 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00
26. Topsoil Type A (S.P. 8-02.5) 80 CY $28.00 $2,240.00
27. Seeded Lawn Installation (S.P. 8-02.5) 350 SY $2.00 $700.00
28. Sand (S.P. 8-02.5) 10 CY $50.00 $500.00
29. Landscaping Restoration (S.P. 8-02.5) 1 FA $2,500.00 $2,500.00

ATTACHMENT 1

27 of 109



Att. 1 - Engineers Estimate Page 2 of 2

ITEM ESTIMATED UNIT
NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT
30. Brick Entryway Structure (S.P. 8-02.5) 1 FA $3,000.00 $3,000.00
31. Rolled Concrete Curb and Gutter (S.P. 8-04.5) 28 LF $75.00 $2,100.00
32. Cement Concrete Driveway Repair (S.P. 8-06.5) 36 SY $120.00 $4,320.00
33. Quarry Spalls (S.P. 8-15.5) 15 TN $50.00 $750.00
34. Project Documentation (S.P. 8) 1 LS $500.00 $500.00

Subtotal All Items $233,270.00
Sales Tax at 0% per W.S. Revenue Rule No. 171 $0.00
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $233,270.00

28 of 109



ATTACHMENT 2

29 of 109



30 of 109



31 of 109



32 of 109



33 of 109



34 of 109



35 of 109



36 of 109



37 of 109



38 of 109



39 of 109



40 of 109



41 of 109



42 of 109



43 of 109



44 of 109



45 of 109



46 of 109



47 of 109



48 of 109



49 of 109



50 of 109



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: August 14, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANANGER TO EXECUTE AN EASEMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT TO LOCATE A 
WATER LINE TO SERVICE THE FIRESTONE DEVELOPMENT, CITY FILE 
NO. LU11-0008/2127, WITHIN A PORTION OF CITY OWNED PROPERTY 
(PARCEL NO 3780400130)  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Easement Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
On January 24, 2012, the council authorized the city manager to execute an easement agreement 
with Firestone (City File No. LU11-0008/2127) to locate a waterline within city owned property 
(Tract A of the June Estates, Parcel No. 3780400130). In order to finalize the construction of the 
waterline extension with Covington Water District, a waterline easement between the City 
(current owner of Tract A) and Covington Water District is required.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Do not authorize the City Manager to enter into an easement agreement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance           Resolution      X     Motion   Other_______ 
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to enter into an easement agreement 
with Covington Water District to locate a waterline to service the Firestone 
Development, City File No. LU11-0008/2127, within a portion of city owned 
property (Parcel No 3780400130). 
 

REVIEWED BY:   Community Development Director 
   Public Works Director 
   Finance Director 
   City Attorney 

City Manager 

51 of 109



ATTACHMENT 1

52 of 109



53 of 109



54 of 109



55 of 109



56 of 109



57 of 109



58 of 109



59 of 109



60 of 109



Agenda Item 1  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: August 14, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  COUNCIL DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON THE 2012 COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT DOCKET AS RECOMMENDED BY THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Written public comments on the proposed amendments 
2. Proposed Ordinance for CPA 2012-01, DRA 2012-01, and CPA 2012-02 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ann Mueller, Senior Planner   
                              Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On April 24, 2012, the City Council formally “docketed” two (2) proposed Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments (CPA) and one (1) proposed Development Regulation Amendment (DRA).   

1. CPA 2012-01: Amendment to DTP Policy 2.4 in chapter 4, the Downtown Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan, to require ground floor retail, restaurant, and/or personal service uses as 
part of any new multi-story, multifamily residential development in the Town Center focus area 
zone.  

2. DRA 2012-01: Amendment to the City’s Zoning Code and Development Regulations, CMC 
18.31, to implement the policy language in CPA 2012-01.  This amendment will require any 
multifamily development in the Town Center focus area zone to be located in a minimum three-
story mixed use structure with 60% or more of the ground floor abutting a street, public space, 
plaza or green space to be occupied by one or more of the following permitted uses: retail, 
restaurant, and/or personal service uses.  

3. CPA 2012-02: Amendment to Chapter 1, the Introduction Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan 
and the addition of a new Appendix T-3, relating to criteria for annexing unincorporated areas. 
Chapter 2, the Land Use Element, Section 2.8.2 Urban Growth Area and Potential Annexation 
Areas is also amended with new or modified policies to guide future annexations.  

During the last four months, city staff and the Planning Commission have worked on processing 
these amendments during numerous public meetings and one official public hearing on July 19, 
2012. CPA 2012-01 and DRA 2012-01 requiring ground floor retail, service, or restaurant uses 
in three-story, mixed-use developments in the Town Center Zone were initiated by the Planning 
Commission.   CPA 2012-02 modifying and amending the city’s annexation policies was 
proposed by city staff. 

At the April 5, 2012, Planning Commission public hearing on setting the final 2012 docket 
recommendation to the City Council,  Kim Nakamura, CEO of Rush Forth Construction 
Company; Eric Cederstrand, President of Commencement Bay Development; Jim Wene with 
Ashton Development; and Doug Merganthaler with Ashton Development spoke in opposition to 
amendments CPA 2012 -01 and DRA 2012-01. Attached are written comment letters submitted 

61 of 109



to date via email or at a Planning Commission meeting in opposition to CPA 2012-01 and DRA 
2012-01. (Attachment 1)  

On July 19, 2012, the Planning Commission held the required public hearing for their 
recommendation to the City Council on the three 2012 docketed amendments. There were no 
additional written public comments received on any of the proposed amendments. No public 
testimony was provided on CPA 2012-02, amendments relating to the urban growth area and 
annexing unincorporated areas.  Don Ramsey with the Ashton Development Company provided 
public testimony at the July 19 public hearing in opposition of the proposed amendments to the 
Downtown Element of the Comprehensive Plan (CPA 2012-01) and to the Covington Municipal 
Code 18.31 (DRA 2012-01) which would result in not permitting stand alone multifamily 
structures in the Town Center Focus Area.  

After listening to public testimony on July 19 and reviewing all written comments and public 
testimony at previous public meetings, the Planning Commission discussed the merits of each of 
the three amendments and how they related to the overall vision of the Town Center Plan, the 
Downtown and Economic Development Elements of the Comprehensive Plan, and future 
annexation of land to the city limits of Covington. The Planning Commission then voted 6-1 to 
recommend to the City Council the adoption of the two comprehensive plan amendments and the 
one development regulation amendment.   

At tonight’s meeting the Council is scheduled to discuss the Planning Commission 
recommendation and potentially vote on a final decision for the 2012 “docketed” Comprehensive 
Plan and Development Regulation amendments.  The Council must make a final decision to 
approve, modify, deny, or defer the proposed CPAs and DRAs by December 31, 2012. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Recommend changes to the proposed ordinance prior to adoption.  
2. Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None associated directly with these amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or Development 
Regulations.  Minor printing costs will be required to print new elements of the plan and pages of 
municipal code which will be accomplished within existing budgeted items of the city. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution        Motion        Other 
 

Ordinance Option 1—Adopting All Three Docketed Items: 
 
Council member ___________ moves, Council member ___________ seconds, 
to pass an ordinance updating the City of Covington’s Comprehensive Plan 
by amending the Downtown Element, Chapter 4; amending the Covington 
Municipal Code Chapter 18.31, Downtown Development and Design 
Standards; amending the Introduction Chapter, Chapter 1-Land Use, and 
new appendix (T-3), relating to annexation policies, in accordance with 
attached Exhibits A-C.  
 

62 of 109



 
 
 
Ordinance Option 2—Adopting Only CPA 2012-02 (Relating to Annexation):  
 
Council member ___________ moves, Council member ___________ seconds, 
to pass an ordinance updating the City of Covington’s Comprehensive Plan 
by amending the Introduction Chapter, Chapter 1, and new Appendix T-3, 
relating to annexation policies, in accordance with attached Exhibit C.  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager  
                               Finance Director  
                               City Attorney 

63 of 109



ATTACHMENT 1

64 of 109



65 of 109



66 of 109



67 of 109



68 of 109



69 of 109



70 of 109



ORDINANCE NO.  14-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
UPDATING THE CITY OF COVINGTON 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY AMENDING THE 
DOWNTOWN ELEMENT, CHAPTER 4; AMENDING THE 
COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE (CMC) SECTION 18.31 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN 
STANDARDS; AMENDING THE INTRODUCTION 
CHAPTER-CHAPTER 1; AND ADDING A NEW APPENDIX 
T-3 OF THE COVINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, 
RELATING TO NEW ANNEXATION POLICIES.     

 
 WHEREAS, the city has adopted procedures for amending the Comprehensive Plan, 
consistent with the requirements for amendment prescribed by the Growth Management Act, 
Chapter 36.70A of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW); and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 14.25.050 of the Covington Municipal Code (CMC), a 
number of proposals for Comprehensive Plan amendments were submitted for City Council 
consideration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 24, 2012, the City Council considered these proposed amendments 
and adopted an official docket, directing the Planning Commission to further review and analyze 
the docketed amendments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and analyzed the docketed amendments 
and held a public hearing on July 19, 2012 , to receive public comments on the docketed 
amendments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on their review and analysis of the docketed amendments and the 
public comments received, the Planning Commission forwarded its recommendations to the City 
Council on July 19, 2012, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered the city’s staff report, the 
recommendations of the Planning Commission, and the public comments received; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the docketed amendments are consistent with the 
Growth Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW, and will protect and promote the health, safety, 
and welfare of the general public; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  

ATTACHMENT 2

71 of 109



 
 

 Section 1

 

.  The Downtown Element, Chapter 4 of the City of Covington Comprehensive 
Plan, DTP Policy 2.4 is hereby amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit A, incorporated 
herein. 

 Section 2

 

.  The Covington Municipal Code (CMC), Section 18.31 Downtown 
Development and Design Standards is herby amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit B, 
incorporated herein. 

            Section 3.

 

 The Introduction Chapter, Chapter 1, and new Appendix T-3 of the City of 
Covington Comprehensive Plan, related to annexation policies are hereby amended as set forth in 
the attached Exhibit C, incorporated herein. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after proper 
posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 
 Section 5.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
  
 Passed by the City Council on the 14th day of August, 2012. 

 
 
_______________________                      
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:  August 17, 2012 
EFFECTIVE:   August 22, 2012 

ATTESTED: 
 
 
                                          
Sharon Scott 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 

72 of 109



Exhibit A 

CPA 2012-01        Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 

 Proposed 2012 amendment –CPA 2012-01 
 
City of Covington Comprehensive Plan  
DOWNTOWN ELEMENT  

4.5 Goals and Policies 

4.5.2 Town Center Focus Area 

VISION:  The Town Center Focus Area should be the central community-
oriented heart of the downtown with public plazas and civic 
buildings, public spaces and landmarks, a mix of multi-story 
residential, office, service and retail uses; contain short block 
sizes on a rectangular grid system that are conducive to 
walking; focus around a traditional “Main Street” with 
sidewalk cafes and ground floor retail uses where Covington 
residents and visitors outside the community can come to shop, 
socialize, relax, and attend special community events; and be 
located south of SE 272nd St.    

DTG 2.0 Use a new Town Center land use and zoning designation to 
proactively implement a walkable, pedestrian scale mixed-use 
development pattern that emphasizes the public realm at the 
heart of the downtown. 

DTP 2.1 Apply the Town Center designation to a single area 
comprised of large parcels suitable for development 
or redevelopment that are central to downtown and 
accessible from highways and major arterials.  

 
DTP 2.2 Allow one new large-format retail store to be built 

within the Town Center Focus Area. The City 
should adopt development regulations requiring 
this store to be located west of the proposed 
north/south “Main Street” (171st Avenue SE), 
requiring that the big box be setback from the 
proposed 171st Avenue SE a sufficient distance to 
allow the future construction of street-frontage, 
pedestrian-oriented retail and complimentary uses 
along the proposed 171st Avenue SE ,and 
prohibiting any   service or delivery vehicles to and 
from the big box from using 171st Avenue SE. There 
should be no curb cuts along the proposed 171st 
Avenue SE providing vehicular access of any kind 

73 of 109



Exhibit A 

CPA 2012-01        Page 2 of 2 
 
 

to the big box (except for emergency vehicle access, 
if required by the Fire Marshall). 

DTP 2.3   The City should move forward with efforts to acquire 
property for a civic building and plaza space within 
the new Town Center Focus Area, that is consistent 
with the vision of the new Town Center Concept 
Plan, supports an interactive pedestrian-oriented 
Streetscape, and provides that unique, identifiable 
public gathering space with public business and 
community functions.  The civic building and plaza 
space should support other potential future public 
investments such as a public parking facility, a 
transit center/park-and-ride facility, and a 
community center, and be adjacent to the 
pedestrian-oriented “Main Street”.   

DTP 2.4 Encourage residential uses in the Town Center 
Focus Area at more urban densities, greater than 
24 units per acre, making efficient use of prime 
land, supporting transit friendly and pedestrian-
oriented retail, and encouraging inclusion of 
residential uses in new mixed-use projects with 
ground floor retail, restaurant and /or personal 
services., as well as supporting stand-alone multi-
family housing developments. 

DTP 2.5 Zoning and development regulations in the Town 
Center Focus Area should promote specific types 
and a mix of uses, building forms and public realm 
improvements described in the Town Center Vision 
statement, including retail, service, office, health 
care, and residential uses.  

DTP 2.6 Provide incentives for innovative, affordable 
housing development and encourage workforce 
housing targeted for workers expected to fill retail 
and service jobs within the downtown. 

DTP 2.7 Recognize Downtown as uniquely suited to 
supporting special-needs housing due to the 
convenience of nearby health services.  

DTP 2.8  Encourage transit oriented development (TOD) 
where feasible, to locate within the Town Center 
Focus Area. 

 

74 of 109



Exhibit B 

DRA 2012-01  
Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 Proposed 2012 amendment –DRA 2012-01 
City of Covington Municipal Code 
Chapter 18.31 
Downtown Development and Design Standards 
18.31.080 Permitted land uses. 
(1) The use of a property is defined by the activity for which the building or lot is intended, designed, arranged, 
occupied or maintained. The use is considered permanently established when that use will or has been in 
continuous operation for a period exceeding 60 days. A use which will operate for less than 60 days is considered 
a temporary use, and subject to the requirements of Chapter 18.85 CMC. 

(2) Explanation of Permitted Use Table.  

(a) The permitted use table in this chapter determines whether a use is allowed in a district. The name of 
the district is located on the vertical column and the use is located on the horizontal row of these tables. 

(b) If the letters “NP” appear in the box at the intersection of the column and the row, the use is not 
permitted in that district, except for certain temporary uses. 

(c) If the letter “P” appears in the box at the intersection of the column and the row, the use is allowed in 
that district subject to the review procedures specified in Chapter 14.30 CMC and the general 
requirements of the code. 

(d) If the letter “C” appears in the box at the intersection of the column and the row, the use is allowed 
subject to the conditional use review procedures specified in Chapter 14.30 CMC and conditional use 
fees as set forth in the current fee resolution, and the general requirements of the code. 

(e) If a number appears next to a specific use or in the box at the intersection of the column and the row, 
the use may be allowed subject to the appropriate review process indicated above, the general 
requirements of the code and the specific conditions indicated in the permitted use conditions with the 
corresponding number in the code subsection immediately following the permitted use table. 

(f) All applicable requirements shall govern a use whether or not they are cross-referenced in a section. 

(3) Permitted Use Table. 

Use Categories 

Town 
Center 
(TC)23 

Mixed 
Commercial 

(MC) 

General 
Commercial 

(GC) 

Mixed 
Housing 

Office 
(MHO)1 

Residential 

Dwelling Unit, Accessory NP NP NP P2 

75 of 109

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1885.html#18.85�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving14/Coving1430.html#14.30�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving14/Coving1430.html#14.30�


Exhibit B 

DRA 2012-01  
Page 2 of 7 

 

Dwelling Unit, Multifamily P26 P P P 

Dwelling Unit, Single-Family Attached, Detached or 
Cottage Housing21 

NP NP NP P2 

Senior Citizen Assisted Housing P P P C 

Commercial 

Adult Entertainment  NP P3 P3 NP 

Business Services19 P5 P P P4,5 

Drive Through Use NP P P NP 

Farmers’ Markets and Public Markets6 P P P NP 

Gambling and Card Rooms NP NP NP NP 

Home Occupation and Live/Work P P P P 

Outdoor Commercial NP NP P NP 

Personal and Beauty Services20,21 P P P P 

Private Electric Vehicle Parking Facility (Primary Use)     P5,24   

Private Parking Facility (Primary Use) NP NP NP NP 

Professional Office P P P P 

Retail Trade and Services – 100,000 sq. ft. or less for all 
structures  

P5 P P10 P4,5 

Retail Trade and Services – greater than 100,000 sq. ft. 
for all structures  

C5,9,18 P P10 NP 

Shooting Ranges25 NP NP P NP 

Storage/Self Storage NP P5 P NP 

Temporary Lodging/Hotel P P P C22 

Cultural/Recreation 

Cinema, Performing Arts and Museums  P P P NP 

Meeting Hall/Other Group Assembly P P P C 

Recreation, Indoor or Outdoor C P P P 

Religious C7 P P C 

Health Services 

Emergency Care Facility  C9,18 P NP NP 

Hospital  NP P NP NP 

Medical Office/Outpatient Clinic P8 P NP P 

76 of 109



Exhibit B 

DRA 2012-01  
Page 3 of 7 

 

Nursing/Personal Care Facility NP P NP C 

Industrial/Manufacturing  

Asphalt Plants NP NP NP NP 

Light Industrial/Manufacturing NP NP P10 NP 

Government/Institutional11 

Essential Public Facilities NP NP C NP 

Government Services P  P  P  P12 

Major Utility Facility C14 C P C 

Minor Utility Facility P15 P P P 

Schools: Compulsory, Vocational and Higher Education  C13 P NP C 

Communication Facilities16 

Antenna P P P P 

Transmission Support Structure C17 C P NP 

(4) Permitted Use Conditions.  

1. a. Unless the use can be accommodated within an existing structure, development and/or redevelopment in the 
Covington Firs and Covington Township subdivisions shall be a minimum of two acres;  

b. Be contiguous to a non-single-family use of two acres or more to be eligible to redevelop to a new use; 
and  

c. Successive development cannot isolate existing single-family residential lots less than two acres (as a 
group) between developments.  

2. a. No new subdivision of land is permitted for single-family homes except for townhouses and cottage 
developments. The exception is a binding site plan for commercial uses.  

b. New single-family homes are allowed on existing single-family lots.  

c. An accessory dwelling unit is allowed as an accessory to a single-family detached unit subject to the 
development standards in CMC 18.25.030(7).  

3. Adult entertainment uses are prohibited within certain locations pursuant to the development standards 
provided in Chapter 5.20 CMC and CMC 18.25.040(2).  

4. This use is restricted to a maximum of 5,000 gross square feet within the MHO district. 

5. Services and operations other than customer parking shall be fully contained within a structure. 

77 of 109

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1825.html#18.25.030�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving05/Coving0520.html#5.20�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1825.html#18.25.040�


Exhibit B 

DRA 2012-01  
Page 4 of 7 

 

6. Temporary farmers’ and public markets shall be permitted in accordance with CMC 18.85.125. 

7. The development shall not occupy more than one acre for the total of the site development, including any 
planned phases and/or expansions.  

8. a. Buildings greater than four stories shall provide 80 percent of required parking within a structure. Structured 
parking shall not front onto 171st Ave SE.  

b. Medical office uses greater than two stories shall have a minimum of 60 percent ground floor retail 
trade and services and 40 percent business and professional services when fronting onto 171st Ave SE. 

9. The development shall be located west of the proposed 171st Ave SE road alignment with frontage onto 168th 
Pl SE or the planned SE 276th St. alignment.  

10. All structures shall meet the required setbacks, landscaping and all other standards contained in this chapter. 
Equipment storage, manufacturing activities, and wrecked, dismantled and/or inoperative vehicles shall be 
enclosed in a structure or fully screened from public right-of-way, including SE 272nd St. and Covington Way with 
Type I landscaping in accordance with CMC 18.40.040. 

11. Maintenance yards, substations and solid waste transfer stations are not permitted in the TC, MC, or MHO 
downtown zoning districts.  

12. Transit stations and park and ride facilities, not including bus stops, shall be reviewed by a conditional use 
permit pursuant to CMC 18.125.040. 

13. All schools for compulsory, vocational and higher education shall be located on the upper floors of a mixed 
use building that includes ground-floor commercial uses. 

14. All facilities shall not occupy more than one acre of a site and the facility shall be screened with Type I 
landscaping in accordance with CMC 18.40.040. 

15. Minor utility facilities, such as telecom, fiber optics, Internet and similar facilities, shall be located within a fully 
enclosed structure, unless otherwise determined by the Director. 

16. Chapter 18.70 CMC, Development Standards – Communication Facilities, outlines the approval and review 
process. In the event of a conflict between the requirements of Chapter 18.70 CMC and the requirements of this 
chapter, Chapter 18.70 CMC shall govern. 

17. All transmission support structures shall be mounted on a building. 

18. a. Emergency care facilities shall not occupy more than four acres for the total of the site development 
including any planned phases and/or expansions of the emergency care use; 

b. Shall not exceed 50,000 square feet of total building square footage; and 

78 of 109

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1885.html#18.85.125�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1840.html#18.40.040�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving18125.html#18.125.040�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1840.html#18.40.040�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1870.html#18.70�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1870.html#18.70�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1870.html#18.70�


Exhibit B 

DRA 2012-01  
Page 5 of 7 

 

c. Shall not exceed more than two stories or 35 feet whichever is greater.  

19. Gasoline service stations and battery exchange stations are limited to the general commercial and mixed 
commercial districts and subject to the following conditions: 

a. A gasoline service station shall be limited to eight pumps and 16 price gauges to service no more than 
16 vehicles. 

b. A battery exchange station shall provide a minimum of three stacking spaces.  

c. Stacking spaces and drive-through facilities shall be designed in accordance with CMC 18.50.080. 

d. Any associated materials, equipment storage, outdoor storage tanks and battery exchange activities 
shall be within a fully enclosed structure, unless otherwise determined by the Director.  

20. a. No burning of refuse or dead animals is allowed; 

b. The portion of the building or structure in which animals are kept or treated shall be soundproofed. All 
run areas, excluding confinement areas for livestock, shall be surrounded by an eight-foot-high solid wall 
and surfaced with concrete or other impervious material;  

c. Subject to animal keeping provisions of Chapter 18.80 CMC;  

d. Prior to issuance of a development permit, documentation shall be provided by a qualified acoustical 
consultant, for approval by the Community Development Director, verifying that the expected noise to be 
emanating from the site complies with the standards set forth in WAC 173-60-040(1) for a Class B 
source property and a Class A receiving property;  

e. Outside runs and other outside facilities for animals are not permitted;  

f. Not permitted in any subdivision containing dwelling units; and 

g. May only treat small animals on premises. 

21. Day care I is allowed only as an accessory to a single-family detached unit.  

22. Except bed and breakfasts, guesthouses are permitted outright and do not require a conditional use permit.  

23. Mixed use structures greater than one story shall provide ground floor retail, restaurant, or personal services 
along 60 percent of the building facade. Permitted uses under the headings of cultural/recreation and 
governmental/institutional in subsection (3) of this section are exempt from this provision.  

24. Parking facilities shall be fully screened from the public right-of-way with Type 1 landscaping in accordance 
with CMC 18.40.040. 

79 of 109

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.080�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1880.html#18.80�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1840.html#18.40.040�


Exhibit B 

DRA 2012-01  
Page 6 of 7 

 

25. a. The indoor shooting range, including its plans, rules, procedures, management and staff, shall comply with 
the applicable safety guidelines and provisions in the latest edition of “the Range Source Book” (National Rifle 
Association of America: Fairfax, Virginia) or its successor, as appropriate to the type of facility involved.  

b. Any new development proposal and/or business license application for an indoor shooting range shall be 
accompanied by a notarized letter by the shooting facility operator that the facility complies with Federal and State 
regulations, meets commonly accepted shooting facility safety and design practices, and will be operated in a 
manner that protects the safety of the general public. 

c. Outdoor shooting ranges are not permitted. (Ord. 04-12 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 01-12 § 1 (Exh. 1); Ord. 19-11 § 1 
(Exh. 1); Ord. 10-10 § 1 (Exh. A)) 

26.  Multifamily residential dwellings in the TC zone shall be located in a minimum three-story, mixed-use 
structure.    60% or more of the ground floor abutting a street, public space, public plaza and/or public green 
space shall be occupied by one or more of the following permitted uses: retail, restaurant or personal services.  
Driveways, service and truck loading areas, parking garage entrances and lobbies shall not be included in 
calculating the required percentages of ground floor use. 
 

18.31.090 Downtown zoning districts density and dimension standards. 
(1) Table of Density and Dimension Standards, Downtown Zoning Districts. 

Standards 

Town Center 

(TC) 

Mixed 

Commercial 

(MC) 

General 

Commercial 

(GC) 

Mixed 

Housing 

Office (MHO) Exceptions and Notes 

Maximum 

Building Height 
75 feet 60 feet 55 feet 45 feet  

Maximum height shall be 45 feet within 50 feet of 

any zone outside of the downtown zone. In the MHO 

district, the 35 feet maximum height shall also apply 

within 50 feet of another MHO property. 

Maximum 

Residential 

Density (stand 

alone) 

Not Permitted 

Unlimited 
60 D.U./acre 48 D.U./acre 24 D.U./acre 

For cottage housing, CMC 18.37.040 shall control. 

Stand alone residential structures are not permitted 

in the Town Center. 

Maximum 

Residential 

Density (if ground 

floor is 

commercial) 

Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited 24 D.U./acre 

  

Minimum 

Residential 
32 D.U./acre 24 D.U./acre 24 D.U./acre 12 D.U./acre 

Residential use is not required in the downtown. For 

cottage housing, CMC 18.37.040 shall control. 

80 of 109

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1837.html#18.37.040�


Exhibit B 

DRA 2012-01  
Page 7 of 7 

 

Density 

Maximum Floor 

Area Ratio (FAR) 

with Bonus 

Features 

4:1 3:1 3:1 

2:1, 1.25:1 

east of Wax 

Road 

Refer to CMC 18.31.100 for bonus features. 

Maximum Floor 

Area Ratio (FAR) 

without Bonus 

Features 

1.5:1 1:1 1:1 
1:1; .75:1 east 

of Wax Road 

No minimum FAR. Development within the Jenkins 

Creek Corridor shall utilize low impact development 

(LID) techniques as adopted in CMC 13.25.020.  

Maximum 

Impervious 

Surface  
80% 90% 80% 

70%; 50% east 

of Wax Road 

and south of 

SE 272nd St. 

Developments in the MHO located east of Wax Road 

and south of SE 272nd St., and cottage housing 

developments shall not exceed the 50% maximum 

impervious surface.  

Minimum Lot 

Frontage 

Occupied by a 

Building 

Type I Street 

– 80%  

Type II Street 

– 50% 

Type III Street 

– 50% 

Type IV 

Street – 40%  

Type II Street 

– 50%  

Type IV 

Street – 40%  

Type IV 

Street – 40%  
None 

A building shall be located within 5 feet of the back of 

sidewalk or on a public plaza. Where utility 

easements greater than 5 feet exist, the building 

shall be set back to the extent of the easement and 

this area shall be designed as an extension of the 

sidewalk and/or may be included as part of the public 

space requirement.  

Minimum 

Setbacks within 

District 

None None 20 feet 10 feet 

Except in the TC and MC districts, a minimum of 5 

feet setback shall be provided from any public 

property other than a street.  

Minimum 

Setbacks to 

Adjoining 

Downtown District 

10 feet where 

adjoining the 

MHO District 

only 

10 feet  N/A 10 feet 

In districts other than the MHO, no setback shall be 

required for mixed use development or commercial 

building less than 50,000 square feet, with no 

significant outside storage or sales. 

Minimum 

Setbacks to 

Zones Outside 

the Downtown 

Zone 

0 20 feet 20 feet 20 feet 

Refer to Design Standards Section B(1)(g) – Buffers 

and Transitions. No setback is required where a 

zone is separated from another zone by a street.  

(2) Additional Density and Dimension Development Standards Referenced in This Title. 

(a) CMC 18.30.060 through 18.30.090 for density measurement and calculation methods.  

(b) CMC 18.30.130 through 18.30.200 for measurement of setbacks and allowed projections into the 
setbacks. (Ord. 10-10 § 1 (Exh. A)) 

81 of 109

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1831.html#18.31.100�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving13/Coving1325.html#13.25.020�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1830.html#18.30.060�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1830.html#18.30.090�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1830.html#18.30.130�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving18/Coving1830.html#18.30.200�


Exhibit C 

CPA 2012-02          Page 1 of 7 

 

 Proposed 2012 amendment –CPA 2012-02 
City of Covington Comprehensive Plan  
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.10 Criteria for Annexing Unincorporated Areas 

Annexation of property within the UGA should benefit the City, its residents, and property owners. The 
City benefits by its increased ability to control new development with City standards, to extend its 
boundary in a logical manner, to expand its economic and tax base, to provide opportunities for new 
residential and commercial development that meet the needs of underserved populations, and to gain 
revenues from areas that enjoy City amenities but do not currently pay fees or taxes to the City. 
Property owners and new residents gain the ability to participate in local government, which directly 
impacts their lives and property. They also gain access to local services including police protection, code 
enforcement, building and land use controls. 

The basic criteria for annexations is are established by King County. King County policy establishes the 
framework for ongoing and consistent responses to annexing properties located within the UGA. Polices 
to guide the annexation process have been adopted in Land Use, Environmental and Economic 
Development Elements of this Comprehensive Plan. In addition, Appendix T-3 contains specific cCriteria 
to direct the annexation process. Covington recognizes that the fiscal impact is only one of many 
criterion to be evaluated, and it must be balanced with other annexation policies such as protection of 
natural resources and environmentally sensitive areas, provisions of public services and infrastructure, 
and  helping the City meet its household and employment growth targets. will be developed regarding 
applicable regulations and development standards; regional mitigation of drainage and traffic problems; 
extension of streets and utilities; provision of services; consistent treatment of critical areas; public 
information; and administration. 

 

2.0 Land Use Element 

2.8.2  Urban Growth Area and Potential Annexation Areas 
LNG 2.0 The City of Covington will designate an UGA and Potential Annexation Area, which will define 

Covington’s planning area and projected city limits for the next 20 years. 

LNP 2.1 The UGA boundary shall be coordinated with is determined by King County in 
consultation with the City of Covington, pursuant to RCW 36.70A. The UGA and 
surrounding jurisdictions, and will reflect the growth management population projections 
as provided by the state’s office of financial management, the regional growth vision as 
expressed in Vision 2040 and the Countywide Planning Policies, and the vision, goals 
and policies provided in the city’s Comprehensive Plan. 

82 of 109



Exhibit C 

CPA 2012-02          Page 2 of 7 

LNP 2.2 The UGA shall provide enough land to accommodate at least twenty years of projected 
growth of households and employment. 

LNP 2.3 Monitor the UGA boundary available land capacity within the city’s UGA  as build-out 
occurs and make necessary adjustments in coordination with King County, consistent 
with the Countywide Planning Policies.  

LNP 2.4 Refine Include all unincorporated urban areas adjacent to Covington within the Potential 
Annexation Area, working with King County, adjacent cities and jurisdictions, and 
citizens in Unincorporated King County. 

LNP 2.5 Coordinate future planning and interlocal agreements for Potential Annexation 
AreasAreas (PAA) with the appropriate agencies and jurisdictions. Work with King 
County to develop an interlocal agreement between the City and County for pending 
development applications in the PAAs to be processed by the County in a manner that is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan policies.  

LNP 2.6 Consider only annexations that are within the Potential Annexation Area.  Annexations 
shall be phased to coincide with the ability of the City, public services and 
districtsdistricts and utility purveyors serving the area to provide a full range of urban 
services to areas to be annexed. 

LNP 2.7 Confer with water, sanitary sewer, solid waste, electric, natural gas, telecommunication 
and other public service providers to ensure their services can support the planned 
growth in the City and UGA, and meet desired customer service needs while maintaining 
existing levels of services in the City. 

LNP 2.87 The City Council shall not make a decision on any Aannexation request decisions shall 
not be made until a cost-benefit analysis is completed and the City Council has had 
adequate opportunity for review. ed by the City Council. 

LNP 2.9 Annexation areas should be able to pay its determined fair share of required services and 
should not have a negative financial impact on the City. Funding of certain facilities and 
services by property owners and residents of the annexation area may be a requirement 
of annexation. 

LNP 2.10 Owners of land annexing to the City of Covington shall be subject to their proportionate 
share of the City’s bonded indebtedness. 

LNP 2.118 Designate future “Potential Future Annexation Areas” to facilitate long-range planning 
and decision making consistent with Covington’s growth long term growth needs. 

LNP 2.129 Actively pursue extensions of the UGA to include both sides of roads to enable roadway 
corridor improvements to be consistent on both sides of the corridor. Individual 
annexations should evaluate abutting roadways and intersections to assign responsibility 
for their construction and maintenance to a single jurisdiction. In some instances it may 
be appropriate to annex frontage lots on both sides of the road for consistent 
development.  

LNP 2.13 Individual annexations should have access from a City street or state highway, and 
should represent a logical and timely expansion of the City’s street network. Future street 
grid system plans should be considered.  

LNP 2.140 Actively pursue extensions of the Urban Growth Boundary to include City-owned lands. 

LNP 2.15 Identify preferred future land uses in the Comprehensive Plan for the Potential 
Annexation Areas. 

LNP 2.16 Appropriate zoning districts should be designated for property in an individual 
annexation proposal; zoning in the annexation area should be consistent with the 
comprehensive plan land use designations. 

83 of 109



Exhibit C 

CPA 2012-02          Page 3 of 7 

LNP 2.17 Individual annexations should improve environmental quality through identification and 
protection of open space corridors and critical areas, and the dedication and 
construction of trail and park systems, where appropriate.  

LNP 2.18 Annexations should serve to square off City boundaries, and not divide lots or 
neighborhoods. The intent is to ensure practical boundaries in which services and 
infrastructure can be provided in a logical, effective and efficient manner. 

LNP 2.19 Individual annexation areas should be part of the logical, orderly growth of the city and 
avoid irregular boundaries that create an island, peninsula or bottle-neck of 
incorporated or unincorporated land.   

LNP 2.20 Annexation proposals should include areas that would result in City control over land 
uses along major entrance corridors to the City. 

LNP 2.21 Urban development within a Potential Annexation Area should not occur without 
annexation; unless there is an interlocal agreement with King County defining land use, 
zoning, annexation phasing, urban services, street and other design standards and impact 
mitigation requirements. 

LNP 2.22 Prior to annexation, ensure an orderly transfer to the city of all review authority for 
development applications pending review in King County..  Where possible, joint 
development review should occur. An interlocal agreement should be considered between 
the City and County for pending development applications in annexed areas. Preference 
is for pending development application to be processed by the County on behalf of the 
City; but with City review to  ensure that land develops under the City of Covington’s 
Comprehensive Plan policies. 

LNP 2.23 Annexation requests should not be supported when the action would facilitate vested 
development proposals that are inconsistent with City standards, regulations and 
policies, unless waiving that requirement would achieve other City goals. 

LNP 2. 24  Shoreline Master Program environmental designations, including those for associated 
wetlands, should be established during the annexation process. 

 

7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENT 

7.5.1 Incentives, Planning and Regulations 
EVP 1.14 Assign zoning designations which will protect natural resources and environmentally 

sensitive areas to any additional land annexed to the City  

 

12.0 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 

12.5.5 Commercial & Mixed Use Development 
EDP 5.3   Focus retail and related commercial development to achieve downtown build-out, provide 

for convenience oriented neighborhood retail, and encourage mixed- use development 
with planned annexation areas to fully serve the needs of trade area residents and 
businesses.  

12.5.6 Employment Development 
EDP 6.3 Require property owners in planned annexation areas to engage in collaborative public-

private land use and infrastructure planning for high quality master planned 
development.  

84 of 109



Exhibit C 

CPA 2012-02          Page 4 of 7 

12.5.7 Land Use & Economic Development 
EDP 7.2  In cooperation with King County; provide for UGA expansion and annexation of areas most 

suited to meet 20-year commercial and employment land needs of the City of Covington.  

 

City of Covington Comprehensive Plan 

Appendix T-3 

Annexation Process Criteria 

Site-specific considerations such as critical areas, zoning, the efficient and cost effective delivery of 
services and/or extending infrastructure, and the concerns of adjacent residents, cities and King County 
should be considered by the City prior to the annexation of any Potential Annexation Areas.  When 
evaluating annexation proposals, the following criteria will be given consideration.  Review criteria are 
intended as guidance rather than standards.  

1) A fiscal impact assessment shall be conducted of the costs to provide services and/or extend 
infrastructure and of the tax revenues that would be generated in each area proposed for 
annexation.  

2) Revenues gained by the City through annexation should be at least equal to the additional costs 
incurred by the City or service providers for urban services and infrastructure to the area 
requesting annexation. The probability of substantial future financial benefit to the city should 
be considered when deciding on annexation proposals. Where reasonable, newly annexed areas 
shall be required to assume a proportionate share of the city's outstanding bonded 
indebtedness at the time of annexation. Reasonableness shall be determined by the City Council 
using the following criteria:  

a. Whether and the degree to which the area to be annexed will benefit from the 
improvements funded by the bonded indebtedness; 

b. The obligation of property owners within the area to be annexed to pay other 
outstanding bonded indebtedness for special district improvements, and the extent of 
that financial burden; 

c.  Whether other financial obligations (such as LlD's) will be placed on property owners 
upon annexation, and the extent of those obligations; 

d.  The desirability to the city of annexing the area under consideration. 
3) Individual annexation requests whose physical location would promote “leap frog” annexation, 

resulting in noncontiguous City limits, islands or bottle necks of unincorporated land, will not be 
considered. The City shall discourage annexations that would result in irregular City boundaries. 
Annexations shall include the largest practicable area contiguous to City limits that still result in 
logical City boundaries.  

4) Annexations should be expanded if they include areas surrounded by the City on three or more 
sides or if they include properties with recorded covenants to annex.  

85 of 109



Exhibit C 

CPA 2012-02          Page 5 of 7 

1)5) The City shall only approve annexations that lie completely within the UGA and whose proposed 
zoning are consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The land use designations specified in 
the Comprehensive Plan shall be used as guidance by the Planning Commission in determining 
the recommended zoning classification. If there is no Comprehensive Plan land use designation, 
then the zoning designation Residential -4 should be placed on the annexed property until such 
time as a subarea plan ist undertaken to appropriately identify new Comprehensive Plan and 
zoning designations.  The land use designations, as determined by the City Council through their 
acceptance of the annexation, shall remain on the annexed properties for three  years following 
annexation. 

6) Consider individual annexation proposals based on an analysis and evaluation of the following: 
a. Urban  levels of public services  shall be provided at the City’s adopted level of services 

standards (e.g. police and fire, schools, parks, open space, trails and recreation,  
transportation, storm water, sewer, water and other general government services); 

b. The proposed annexation shall follow logical boundaries, such as streets, waterways, 
ridges, park property, trails, opens space corridors ror substantial topographical 
changes; 

c. The proposed annexation should include or exclude an entire neighborhood.  The 
proposal should not divide portions of the neighborhood between City and County 
jurisdictions;  

d. Critical Areas shall be identified, surveyed and appropriately protected consistent with 
the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan.  Consider inclusion of open space 
corridors, either as greenbelts, trail corridors or urban separators, between the City and 
adjacent jurisdictions. 

e. Consideration should be given to the availability of land within the city for the uses 
which would be developed upon annexation, encouraging infilling of existing 
undeveloped areas before extending services which allow similar development in 
peripheral areas unless there is a benefit to the community at large. 

f. Evaluate proposed annexations to ensure that development enabled by the annexation 
is consistent with policies of the comprehensive plan specifically including population 
and employment growth targets. 

Information and Studies Required 

To adequately assess the merits of annexation proposals, the following information should be gathered, 
analyzed and presented to the City upon application for annexation.  

1. Site Analysis. Necessary facts including existing conditions; acreage; number of residential units; 
businesses; industries; estimated population; street mileage, paved and unpaved; assessed 
valuations; existing utility services; existing parks and playgrounds; schools and public buildings; 
and Critical Area Study 

2. Maps. Preparation of maps to show existing and proposed city boundaries relative to the urban 
service area, general land use patterns, existing and proposed land use designations, critical 

86 of 109



Exhibit C 

CPA 2012-02          Page 6 of 7 

area surveys, existing  major trunk water mains and proposed extensions, existing sewer 
interceptors and proposed extensions, existing streets, and existing public areas, such as 
playgrounds and schools. 

3. Infrastructure Review. Existing public services should be inventoried and evaluated. Confer with 
affected public service districts and utility purveyors to assess the impact of the annexation on 
their facilities.  

4. Urban Services Needs. Urban services, such as water services, sanitary sewers, stormwater 
utilities, garbage disposal, streets, street lighting, police and fire protection, hospital, planning, 
building inspection, library, park, open space and recreational facilities and services should all 
be analyzed for the need for major capital improvements and annual operating needs. These 
needs should be considered in the city’s determination and incorporated into the city or utility 
purveyor’s capital improvement program if the proposed annexation is implemented. The city 
will work cooperatively with those public service districts and utility purveyors to determine the 
most rational and cost-effective means for providing urban level services to newly annexed 
areas and proposed land uses, on both a short and a long term basis, within parameters allowed 
in state statutes. The methods of providing such services to annexed areas should be described 
and their costs determined.  

5. Special Issues. Any special circumstances created by the proposed annexation area should be 
discussed. Special circumstances may include infrastructure, public health or public safety 
problems, and potential impacts to the city due to development within proposed annexation 
areas at the expense of other developable areas within the city. 

6. Fiscal Impact Analysis. 
 

a. Service Requirement Costs. Estimated service requirements from the City, public service 
districts and utility purveyors, should be converted into financial requirements to 
determine the cost of extending or improving services and/or infrastructure to 
accommodate the proposed land uses. Needs and costs should be estimated for 5 years 
from the time of annexation, projecting a rate of growth which would also be used for 
projecting revenue estimates. Considerations of service costs should include:  

i. Police protection: additional personnel, equipment, office space; 
ii. Fire protection: additional personnel, equipment, hydrants, fire stations; 

iii. Public services and private utilities:  additional street lighting, road maintenance 
and construction, storm drainage, water and sewer construction and 
maintenance (including line replacement, pump stations); 

iv. Parks and recreation: additional park acreage, trails, recreational programs, 
new facilities; and 

v. Other governmental services such as: library, planning, building inspection, 
social service programs. 

b. Estimate of Revenues. An estimate of potential revenues to accrue from the area 
should be made and projected over a 5 year period. Existing methods of raising revenue 
that the city now has should be applied to the area being considered for annexation. 
These would include property taxes, state shared revenues, sales taxes, federal revenue 

87 of 109



Exhibit C 

CPA 2012-02          Page 7 of 7 

sharing, business and occupation taxes, utility taxes, inspection and license fees, 
planning and zoning charges. 

c. Cost-Revenue Analysis. The anticipated revenues should be compared with anticipated 
costs, including both projected additional annual operating expenses and major capital 
expenses. The cost-revenue analysis should be projected for 5 years in order to gain an 
understanding of the impact which development of the newly annexed area would 
have. 

7. Community Identity. The nature of the area proposed for annexation relative to surrounding 
unincorporated areas as well as to adjacent city areas should be considered as well. 

 

 

88 of 109



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: August 14, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:   REPORT OF CONSULTANT FOR THE NORTHERN GATEWAY URBAN 

GROWTH AREA (UGA) ANALYSIS AND ANNEXATION STUDY   
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Final Report for Phase I (Provided under separate cover with packet)   
 
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                
EXPLANATION: 
Stalzer and Associates, under contract with the city, has completed Phase I of the Northern 
Gateway Urban Growth Area Analysis and Annexation Study (the “Northern Gateway Study” or 
“Study”), which encompasses approximately 485 acres on both sides of Highway 18 at the 
existing SE 256th St. interchange.  (See Attachment 1 provided under separate cover) The two 
general areas of land analyzed under the Study are the Hawk property, encompassing the gravel 
extraction and processing site on the southeast side of Highway 18 and already in the city limits 
and part of the UGA, and the area surrounding Jenkins Creek on the northwest side of Highway 
18 (the “Notch”), which is not currently within the city limits or the UGA. The entire consultant 
team assembled for this project has extensive experience in similar master planning efforts for 
potential annexation areas and was an outstanding multi-disciplinary team.   
 
The scope of the Study is divided into three phases. The completed Phase I focuses on a 
buildable lands capacity and build-out analysis exploring the feasibility of adding all or a portion 
of the Notch to King County’s UGA in preparation for potential annexation to the City of 
Covington.  Phase I also involves numerous other study elements including public outreach; an 
analysis of existing conditions and constraints, including infrastructure capacities and critical 
areas; fiscal and market demand analyses on the feasibility and costs of annexation; preliminary 
land use concept; and SEPA approaches.   
 
Phases II and III involve a more detailed study of land use alternatives; community visioning; a 
goals, objectives, and policy framework for subarea plans; extensive stakeholder outreach; a joint 
Planning Commission and City Council workshop; development of zoning and site planning 
regulations and capital facilities program; SEPA review; and extensive council public hearings.      
 
City staff is presenting the Study’s final Phase I report for council review and recommendation 
regarding submission of the Study to King County for consideration of expanding the UGA as 
part of their 2012 King County Comprehensive Plan (KCCP) update occurring this September 
and October. The city has received vague and conflicting information from the county on the 
submission deadline for materials to be considered as part of the 2012 KCCP update process—to 
date, staff has only been able to confirm the general deadline of August.  
 

89 of 109



King County will review any request for a change in the UGA based upon several criteria—the 
same criteria also used by the Growth Management Planning Council (GMPC)—which include: 
 

1. The capacity within the city to meet growth targets under buildable lands (in other 
words, does the city have sufficient land or capacity already within the city’s current 
UGA to accommodate the projected residential and commercial growth or demand 
identified in  growth targets by 2031). 

2. The character of the area desired for addition to the UGA as either “Rural” or “Urban” in 
nature (King County requires the area to be other than “Rural” in character to qualify for 
addition to the UGA). 

3. The presence of urban services (does the area to be added to the UGA have the presence 
of urban services or are they planned and can be readily available through the service 
providers and identified within capital facilities plans). 

4. The absence of resource lands (GMA limits how resource lands of long-term commercial 
significance for agriculture, forestry, or mineral may be designated for inclusion in an 
UGA). 

5. The adequate protection of critical areas (Countywide Planning Policies (CPPs) prefer to 
avoid inclusion of territory that is highly environmentally sensitive within an UGA).  

 
Criterion #1, relating to buildable lands capacity and demand using Covington’s assigned growth 
targets, is the most important and critical of the criteria used by King County to evaluate adding 
land to the UGA.  Based upon the assumptions, analysis and results of the Study, Covington has 
an adequate supply of residential and commercial land to meet the projected population and job 
targets currently identified within our buildable lands report that is part of the 2007 King County 
Buildable Lands Report (BLR).  The Study’s demand analysis provides a 20-year examination of 
growth in population, employment, and market capture for the broader Covington market area.  
The analysis also estimates the relative magnitude of demand for retail space, office space, and 
housing in the area.  The Study’s demand estimates are then compared to the 2012 buildable 
lands capacity assessment.   
 
Within the 20-year planning horizon (2031), the existing Covington growth target for residential 
housing units (demand) is 1470 new housing units, while the growth target for jobs (demand) is 
1320 new jobs.  The 20-year housing unit capacity within the city limits is 2783 housing units, 
while the job capacity within the city limits is 3662.  Thus, under the assumptions within the 
current King County CPPs and 2007 Buildable Lands Report for Covington, there is adequate 
land within Covington to meet forecasted housing and job target demand by 2031. If the Notch 
were added to the UGA and thus added to the capacity, an additional 100 units of new housing 
would increase the housing unit capacity to 2883, and an additional 1612 new jobs would 
increase the job capacity to 5274, both well above the demand of 1470 and 1320, respectively.  
 
NEXT STEPS: 
Staff would like the council to address two important decisions related to the Northern Gateway 
Study.   
 

1. Staff needs council approval to proceed with Phase II of the Northern Gateway Study as  
originally envisioned, which involves preparing a subarea land use plan; zoning district 
classifications; and specific zoning, development, and design standards for future development.    

90 of 109



Full funding for Phase I of the Study was provided by private parties with property interests in 
both the Hawk property and the Notch.  Funding for Phase II will also need to come from the 
same private parties. Staff would prefer to proceed with Phase II, pending agreements with the 
private parties to provide the necessary funding as outlined in the original consultant scope of 
work.  If council so directs, staff will immediately begin discussions with the private parties and 
develop a final scope of work with the consultant for council approval, pending funding 
participation by those parties.     
 

2. Staff needs specific direction on whether to provide Phase I of the Northern Gateway  
Study to the King County Council for consideration to expand the UGA as part of their 2012 
KCCP update process, and if so, how that transmittal should occur.   
 
Staff is providing two options for council action: 
 
Option A: Do not transmit Phase I of the Northern Gateway Study to King County Council for 
consideration to expand the UGA as part of the 2012 KCCP update process, as the Study results 
do not support and meet the criteria under the buildable lands analysis for expanding the UGA.  
   
This option recognizes that all cities within King County are committed to the current buildable 
lands process, the CPPs, and the established process of city plans conforming to countywide 
plans operating under the statutory guidelines of the GMA.  Because the Phase I Study results do 
not support expanding the UGA at this time, city staff and the council could lose credibility by 
suggesting that King County ignore the buildable lands criteria in their decision-making process.   
 
If the council chooses this option, city staff will work vigorously to renegotiate an increase in the 
city’s population and job targets during the next review scheduled as part of the GMA required 
Comprehensive Plan Updates in 2013-14.  If successful, the new targets may support a change to 
the UGA boundary thereafter with the development of a subarea plan.   
 
Option B: Transmit Phase I of the Northern Gateway Study to King County Council for 
consideration to expand the UGA as part of the 2012 KCCP update process, acknowledging that 
while the buildable lands analysis does not meet the established criteria for changing the UGA 
boundary, there are other factors that might be considered by King County.  Those factors 
include:  

• Covington’s population and job targets under the buildable lands program have been 
shown by the Study to be low and are the result of out of date data and assumptions from 
an analysis years ago.  

• The Notch represents a very irregular city boundary surrounded on three sides by the 
existing city limits.  

• There are urban services present or readily available by service providers in the Notch, 
and the Notch is really “Urban” in character. 

• Recent trends in Covington related to economic development activity and job creation in 
the health services sector has been very high and  Covington is evolving into a major 
provider of health care jobs and services for southeast King County, resulting in a 
demand for additional regional retail services 

 

91 of 109



If Option B is selected by the council, it is prudent that the council develop a written advocacy 
strategy to guide future council and staff action in support of this topic with King County.   
Staff would ask for council direction to prepare such a written advocacy strategy and return to 
council as soon as possible for concurrence of that strategy.  Since such a strategy could not be 
prepared and approved by Council in time for the scheduled September 11, 2012, GMPC 
meeting when this topic will initially be discussed, staff would also request for council to direct 
an appropriate council member to present a letter to the GMPC outlining this position.        
 
Staff prefers Option A, as it aligns with the established CPPs and buildable lands process—to act 
outside of that process lacks support based upon reasonable planning principles. Furthermore, 
based on the council’s direction and continued funding by private parties, Phase II & III of the 
Northern Gateway Study could continue to move forward with future regional economic 
development potential on the Hawk property at the SE 256th intersection of Highway 18.     
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Request additional information or input from staff and delay a decision on the recommendation 
for the transmission of Phase I of the Study to King County for a future council meeting on 
August 21st or August 28th. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
No direct city budget dollars were allocated to this Study.  All funding for the contract amount 
for Phase I was provided by BranBar LLC and H&C Enterprises LLC and Yarrow Bay Holdings 
through separate agreements with the city.  Though the city did not spend any direct funds for 
Phase I, the city has provided in-kind services in the form of staff time for project management, 
data collection, meeting organization, public notices, and maintaining website information for 
public outreach, and would continue to provide the same in-kind services for Phase II and III.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    _____Ordinance            Resolution___X___Motion__   _     Other 
 
Option A: 
Council member _________________ moves, Council member ______________ seconds, to 
direct staff to proceed with Phase II of the Northern Gateway UGA Analysis and 
Annexation Study as originally envisioned and directs staff to seek financial support for the 
Study from one or both private party interests, as they desire, for participation in Phase II.    

 
Option B: 
Council member __________________moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to transmit the final Phase I of the Northern Gateway UGA Analysis and 
Annexation Study to King County Council for consideration of expansion of the UGA as 
part of the 2012 King County Comprehensive Plan update process and directs the City 
Manager to implement that option and return to the council with any appropriate 
advocacy strategies. Council further directs staff to proceed with Phase II of the Northern 
Gateway UGA Analysis and Annexation Study as originally envisioned and directs staff to 
seek financial support for the study from one or both private party interests, as they desire, 
for participation in Phase II.    
 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney      

92 of 109



    Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting   
 Date: August 14, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  2012 SECOND QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. 2012 Second Quarter Report 
2. Quarterly Performance Reports by Fund 
3. Major Revenue Review 

 
PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
It is the policy of the City and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to provide financial 
reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  
 
There have been some changes to the reports this quarter. New charts have been added and a 
chart legend is attached. During the presentation staff will go through the new charts and explain 
the significance of each one. The new charts and information should help address questions that 
come up from time to time.    
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:          Ordinance            Resolution _____Motion       X   Other 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY AT THIS MEETING  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93 of 109



 

 

June U.S. employment grew by only 80,000 jobs, making for a third 
consecutive month of employment growth below 100,000. 

The national housing market continues to move in a positive direc-
tion. 

The Washington economy continues to grow modestly in early 2012. 
Unemployment edged up to 8.3% in May from a 38-month low in 
April of 8.2%.  

The Washington manufacturing recovery is losing steam but housing 
appears to be turning the corner.  

Housing construction in Washington is strengthening, led by an up-
turn in multi-family construction. 

Aerospace employment is expected to peak at the end of this year 
and begin a gradual decline in mid-2013. Previously it had been ex-
pected aerospace employment to peak in mid-2013 and then to level 
off. 

Washington personal income grew 5.7% (seasonally adjusted annual-
ized rate) in the first quarter of 2012 compared to 3.4% for the U.S. as 
a whole. Only North Dakota and Nebraska had stronger growth.  

Economic & Revenue Summary 
~WA State Economic & Revenue Forecast Council  

2012 Second Quarter 

This is mostly a good news report. Strong showings from most major 
revenue sources coupled with conservative spending finds four out of 
five funds in solid shape. The street fund shows some weakness in both 
major revenue sources—franchise fees and fuel taxes. Street revenues 
still exceed expenditures but the revenue trend is declining slightly. 
Overall, fiscal restraint across the board is still the order of the day as 
the market watch continues and uncertainty abounds.     

Property Tax 2 

Real Estate Excise Tax 2 

Retail Sales and Use Tax  3 

Utility Tax 3 

General Fund 4 

Public Works 5 

Development Services 5 

Parks and Recreation 5 

Inside this issue: 

20
12

 S
e

co
n

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

 
 

C
I

T
Y

 
O

F
 

C
O

V
I

N
G

T
O

N
 

June 30, 2012 

 

Cash and Investments 6 

Capital Investment Program 7 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

- Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENT 1

94 of 109



 

 

Page 2 20 1 2 S E COND QUA RT ER   

Property tax is col-
lected by King County 
and distributed on a 
daily basis to all taxing 
agencies within the 
county. Since taxes are 
due on April 30 and Oc-
tober 30 each year, the major distri-
butions are realized in early May 
and November.  

Through 2nd quarter the City re-
ceived $1,216,987 or 52.0% of 
budget. This is $21,000 above 2011 
second quarter collections.   

Property tax is the most stable 
source of revenue the City has. It is 
one leg of the “three legged” stool 
which the General Fund relies on for 

revenue. The other two legs are 
sales tax and utility tax.  

Property taxes are unrestricted. 
This means there are no restrictions 
on what the revenue can be used to 
pay for within the City. Currently 
property taxes are allocated 100% to 
the General Fund.  

This 2011 levy for 2012 collection is  
$2,340,000 and the levy rate is 
$1.48/$1,000 assessed value.   

The City’s assessed valua-
tion is $1.579 billion—a 
decrease of $142 million 
or 8.3% over the previous 
year.  

The cap for property tax 
collections is $1.60/$1,000 assessed 
value.  There is potential that if 
property valuations decline (or 
$77.4 million) then the levy would 
be bumping the rate cap.  

King County house prices saw a dou-
ble-digit increase in June — the first 
time that's happened in nearly five 
years, according to statistics released 
Thursday by the Northwest Multiple 
Listing Service.  (Seattle Times 7/5/12) 

 

of one-half percent (two quarter 
percents).  

Through the second quarter, collec-
tions are at $300,409 or 92.4% of 
budget. The Home Depot Shopping 
Center Complex sale contributed to 

REET is a restricted revenue dedi-
cated to paying debt service on the 
2007 transportation bonds and 
loans from the Public Works Trust 
Fund. This tax is levied by the City 
on all sales of real estate at the rate 

the large amount. The budget for 
2012 is $325,000.  

Through June there were 28 new 
home sales, 85 existing home sales, 
35 land only sales,  two building 
sales, and nine commercial sales.   

Generally, existing 
home sales drive REET, 
but commercial sales 
add revenue rapidly 
and in large chunks.  

 

Property Tax 

2010 2011 2012 

 $   1,087,572  $   1,196,537 $1,216,987    

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) 

 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2008 113 128 156 189 238 272 306 351 395 444 486 515 

2009 22 36 65 90 111 136 170 195 221 251 284 306 

2010 20 32 58 91 116 174 202 228 243 250 272 322 

2011 140 154 171 192 222 260 288 308 334 346 366 390 

2012 25 198 208 233 278 301 344 

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

$
 i
n
 t

h
o

u
s
a
n
d

s
 (
0
0
0
).

 
  
 2012 Budget

95 of 109



 

 

JU NE 30,  20 1 2  

Sales and Use Tax is the largest 
revenue source available to the 
City. It currently supports the Gen-
eral Fund at 84% and the Parks and 
Recreation Fund at 16%.  The second 
quarter (on a cash basis) is above 
2011 levels by $141,468 or 10.0%.  
Total collections are at  
$1,555,695 or 54.6%. 

In year over year comparisons, 
retail sales increased by 6.4%, 
construction increased 93.0%, 
food services was up 6.4%, and 
all other categories decreased 
3.9%.  

May and June saw the  “all 
other” category turn negative. 
This is a small dollar category so 
the  impact is negligible ($8,336). 

Collections through the second 
quarter 2012 are higher than any 
second quarter on record. Con-
struction has seen positive in-

creases for 14 months, retail for 10 
months, and food services for 20 
months. 

While the national economy still 
shows signs of low consumer confi-
dence we are seeing something 

different here. As long as the city  
continues to see  strong retail sales 
and  solid construction, collections 
should remain ahead of forecast.  

* does not include interest and penalties of $1,224 

The City imposes a utility tax on electrical energy, 
natural gas, brokered natural gas, solid waste, cable 
television, and telephone at the rate of 6.0%. 

The utility tax supports the general fund including 
debt service, streets, parks and parks CIP. 

The second quarter is higher than 2011 by  $113,362. All 
categories are showing stronger on a year over year 
basis.  

MuniServices is in process of conducting an audit of 
solid waste, cable and tele-
phone service that should pro-
vide some answers to the 
swings in revenue. 

The accompanying chart reflects 
the changes in revenue for the 
second quarter of 2011 and 2012. 

Page 3 

Retail Sales & Use Tax 

          Utility Tax 

Utility 2011 2012 

 Electricity $340,429 $363,158 

 Natural Gas 238,907 247,875 

 Solid Waste 57,609 74,431 

 Cable 121,034 126,702 

 Telephone 211,515 270,690 

Total $969,494 $1,082,856* 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

2010 219 544 740 950 1,171 1,391 1,617 1,851 2,125 2,347 2,575 2,795

2011 232 546 742 941 1,185 1,414 1,652 1,899 2,196 2,444 2,698 2,948

2012 247 586 814 1,051 1,305 1,556

3 yr average 233 559 765 981 1,220 1,398 1,627 1,866 2,145 2,377 2,614 2,844

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$ 
in

 t
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s 

(0
0

0
).

   
 

CUMULATIVE

96 of 109



 

 

spending of 14.3% or $458,489 
over the same period last year.  
This is due to the  payout to 
Costco, increased police costs, 
and a larger operating transfer 
out.  

Overall, 41.3% of the budget has 
been spent. Note in the chart be-
low that eight out of ten depart-
ments are below the 50% mark, 
but the City Council and Central 
Services are at 56% and 57% re-
spectively. These departments 
paid some large one-time charges 

Revenues through June are 53.6% 
of budget or $4.4 million. This is 
ahead of 2011 levels by about 
$284,284. Sales tax, on a cash ba-
sis, is 10.0% or $118,836 higher (this 
is due to a change in % allocation) 
than 2011 second quarter while 
utility tax is 11.7% or $113,362 above 
2011 collections (due in part to 
rate change). Property taxes are 
higher than 2011.  

Total expenditures including 
transfers out through June are 
$3,656,215. This is an increase in 

in January, thus skewing the re-
porting for the year.  

The city has paid the police con-
tract for Jan-May and will con-
tinue to pay on a monthly basis.  
This will bring expenditures more 
in line with budget.  

 Beginning fund balance is 
$3,004,967—an increase of 
$653,377. This is a result of under 
spending and increased revenues 
during 2011.  

Page 4 20 1 2 S E COND QUA RT ER   

GENERAL FUND  

GENERAL FUND DEPARTMENT BUDGET UPDATE 

          

Department YTD - 2011 % of Budget YTD - 2012 % of Budget 

 City Council $  64,967 45.7% $  224,406 56.4% 

 Municipal Court 219,771 43.7% 232,461 35.1% 

 City Manager 420,002 47.9% 413,888 43.8% 

 Finance 236,593 46.7% 256,263 48.8% 

 Legal 28,520 33.2% 26,192 32.7% 

 Personnel 154,845 47.4% 150,344 45.1% 

 Central Services 551,857 59.2% 519,502 57.0% 

 Law Enforcement 1,098,226 36.3% 1,158,054 37.6% 

 Community Development 204,033 46.8% 163,595 41.9% 

 Operating Transfers Out 218,912 18.9% 511,510 33.6% 

TOTAL $   3,197,726 40.0% $   3,656,215 41.3% 

97 of 109



 

 

JU NE 30,  20 1 2  Page 5 

Public Works consists of Street 
Operations and Surface Water 
Management (SWM).  

Street Operations is funded by 
franchise fees received from Com-
cast and a motor vehicle fuel ex-
cise tax—gas tax.  

Franchise fees are slightly under 
forecast at 49.3% or $98,037. Total 
operating revenues are $279,816 
and transfers in are $190,526. At 
$470,341, this puts total revenues 
right at 57.6% for the end of the 
quarter.  

The gas tax is running slightly un-
der budget. This could be due to 

the economy or inaccurate fore-
casting. The forecast is generated 
through Municipal Research Ser-
vices Corporation (MRSC). The 
amount received was 45.8% 
($170,288) of budget. This is lower 
than 2011 by about $8,600. Fuel 
taxes have been declining since 
Dec 2009.   

Total expenditures are under 
budget for the second quarter. 
Total expenditures are at 47.8% or 
$434,028. (Update: the Public 
Works Director has instituted a 
spending freeze beginning in July).    

SWM is primarily funded through 

drainage fees that are collected 
by King County. The City has re-
ceived $891,009 or 52.3%.  Total 
revenues are at 51.2% or $946,430.  

Operating expenditures are at 
41.2% or $497,500. With transfers 
out and debt service costs total 
uses are $695,559 or 39.9%.  

Fund balances for Street Opera-
tions declined by $229,607 while in 
creasing in SWM by $373,151. 

The reduction in Street Opera-
tions was due to the repayment of 
REET money which was used to 
strengthen cash flow in prior 
years.  

compared to 18 in 2011. One new 
commercial permit and two pub-
licly owned building permits have 
come in this year.  

Operational expenditures came in 
at 45.6% or $332,593. Including 
other financing uses of $75,601 
raises the percentage to 46.3%.  

Revenue in the second quarter is 
on target.  It is almost $7,400 
ahead of 2011 for the same time 
period. Through the end of June, 
$697,199 or 50.7% has been re-
ceived. Permit revenues are driv-
ing this increase.  

The number of permits for single 
family residences  stands at 63 

 Beginning fund balance is 
$1,562,733—an increase of 
$761,459. Higher than forecast 
revenues contributed to this in-
crease.   

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

Parks is divided into four divisions: 
aquatics, maintenance, recrea-
tion, and parks administration. 
Revenues are derived from a por-
tion of sales tax (16%), aquatics 
revenue, and some miscellaneous 
revenues such as rentals and in-
terest earnings.  

Revenue came in ahead  of fore-
cast at 54.2% or $654,043—led in 

part by sales tax. Aquatics reve-
nue is 54.1% or $270,116—$28,395 
above 2011.  

Attendance is ahead of 2011 by 
1,257 at 41,168. Considering that 
January was almost 900 less than 
2011 this is quite encouraging.  

Overall operating expenditures 
for the four divisions are 43.6% or 
$478,476. Overall uses are 

$553,522 or 44.4%. Revenues are 
exceeding expenditures by  
$100,522.   

The beginning fund balance is 
$232,391 which is a decrease of 
$957.   

 

PARKS and RECREATION 

98 of 109



 

 

Page 6 20 1 2 S E COND QUA RT ER   

Total cash and investments total  
$12,324,290. This exceeds June 
2011 by $2.7 million. The largest 
gainer is CIP followed by Develop-
ment Services and the General 
Fund.   

The Local Government Invest-
ment Pool (LGIP) is currently earn-
ing 0.1746%. The City has 
$8,899,913 invested with the LGIP. 
The LGIP invests in short term se-
curities. It is comparable to an SEC 
regulated Rule 2a-7 money market 
fund and offers 100% liquidity to 
its participants.  

Investments outside the LGIP to-
tal $2,810,495 (market value).  
That is split between US Govern-
ment Agencies  at $2,002,374 and 
Municipal Securities at $808,121.  

The  weighted yield of the portfo-
lio with the state pool is 0.50% and 
without the pool is 1.53%. (almost 
8.8 times the pool rate!) Average 
days to maturity with the pool is 
470 days or 1.29 years and without 
the pool is 529 days or 1.45 years.  

Cash on hand is kept at US Bank  
and various petty cash funds 
throughout the City.  

The chart below reflects the 
amount of cash and investments 
allocated to each fund within the 
City compared to 2011. This is rec-
onciled and updated on a monthly 
basis.  

Cash & Investments 

TOTAL GENERAL LEDGER ACCOUNTS  

 
as of 06/30/11 as of 06/30/12 ∆ 

GENERAL FUND  $2,719,805.12   $3,059,184.01   $  333,378.89  

STREET FUND    274,878.28  282,266.35      7,388.07  

CONTINGENCY FUND 420,582.86 419,169.00 (1,413.86) 

CUMULATIVE RESERVE FUND   1,425,439.94  1,378,461.10     (46,978.84)  

REET 1ST 1/4% FUND    7,062.46  11,672.07 4,609.61 

REET 2ND 1/4% FUND     7,062.44  11,672.07 4,609.63 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FUND 1,102,774.11 1,859,090.34    756,316.23 

PARKS FUND    211,445.03  243,114.85 31,669.82 

LID 99-01 GUARANTY FUND     52,208.06  52,290.79 82.73 

LID 99.01 FUND      512.15       507.36       (4.79) 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM   1,355,257.61  2,609,115.58 1,253,857.97 

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT   1,520,347.05  1,920,811.61 400,464.56 

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE    140,473.62  149,572.18      9,098.56 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 388,000.43 327,363.14 (60,637.29) 

        

TOTAL ALL FUNDS  $9,625,849.16  $12,324,290.45  $2,698,441.29 

99 of 109



 

 

JU NE 30,  20 1 2  Page 7 

 

Capital Investment Program 

Project # Project Description Revenues  Expenditures 

1010 Covington Community Park $5,982 $11,115 

1039 SR 516 Safety Widening $5,224 $22,602 

1127 SR 516 Widening at Jenkins Creek $0 $66,084 

16720 SE 271st St 

Suite 100 

Covington, WA 98042 

C I T Y  O F  C O V I N G T O N  
F I N A N C E  D E P A R T M E N T  

Phone: 253-480-2400 

Fax: 253-638-1122 

 
Rob Hendrickson - Finance Director 

Casey Parker - Senior Accountant 
Lindsay Hagen - Finance Specialist 

Staci Cles - Accounting Clerk 

Grant money was received for 1039 in 
the amount of $5,225. The CCP re-
ceived $2,357 in property tax parks 
expansion levy.  

A total of $99,801 has been spent on 
the three projects listed.  

The table below outlines the individ-
ual projects.  

100 of 109



City of Covington
Quarterly Performance Report - General Fund

as of 6/30/2012

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Finance Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\08-14-12 2nd Qtr Financial Report\2012 GF Quarterly ChartsReportA 08/08/2012

Total Revenue Bud v Act Total Rev v Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2   
Total Exp Bud v Act Total Rev & Exp Bud v Act

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 3 Chart 4 Chart 5

0 
500 

1,000 
1,500 
2,000 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 
500 

1,000 
1,500 
2,000 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

REV 

0 
500 

1,000 
1,500 
2,000 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

REV EXP 

0 

2,000 

4,000 

6,000 

8,000 

10,000 

     

Prop Tax 
27.6% 

Sales Tax 
29.6% 

Utility Tax 
24.5% 

Other Tax 
3.9% 

IntGov 
4.2% 

Chgs for 
Svcs 
7.5% 

Fines 
2.0% Int Earnings 

0.1% 
Misc 
0.6% 

Revenues by Category 

Sal 
20.0% 

Ben 
8.0% 

Supplies 
0.6% 

Chgs for 
Svcs 

26.9% 

IntGov 
44.4% 

Expenditures by Category 

EXP 

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

3,000 

3,500 

4,000 

4,500 

5,000 

2011 2012 

Year over Year Revenue Comparison 

All other revenue 

Charges for Goods & 
Services 

Intergovernmental 
Revenues 

Other Tax 

Utility Tax 

Sales Tax 

Property Tax 

Legend

Cur Year

Budget

Actual
Data in Thousands of $

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual YTD Actual

Property Tax 2,340.0$     1,217.0$     1,123.0$     52.0% 1,196.5$     
Sales Tax 2,394.0       1,306.8       1,087.2       54.6% 1,187.9       
Utility Tax 2,012.5       1,084.1       928.4          53.9% 969.5          
Other Tax 354.0          173.1          180.9          48.9% 175.2          
Intergovernmental Rev 309.5          185.3          124.2          59.9% 157.3          
Charges for Goods & Svcs 668.6          333.2          335.5          49.8% 342.4          
Fines & Penalties 132.0          87.7            44.3            66.4% 73.1            
Investment Interest 6.3              2.7              3.6              43.3% 4.1              
Miscellaneous 22.0            27.6            (5.6)             125.3% 26.9            
Total Operating Revenues 8,238.9       4,417.3       3,821.6       53.6% 4,133.0       
Other Financing Sources -              -              -              0.0% 0.0              
Total Sources 8,238.9$     4,417.3$     3,821.6$     53.6% 4,133.0$     

Salaries & Wages 1,346.2$     626.8$        719.4$        46.6% 633.2$        
Benefits 516.0          251.7          264.3          48.8% 254.4          
Supplies 60.9            19.9            41.0            32.6% 30.1            
Charges for Services 1,576.1       841.9          734.3          53.4% 703.9          
Intergovernmental Svcs 3,789.4       1,392.0       2,397.3       36.7% 1,342.3       
Capital 9.8              -              9.8              0.0% -              
Total Operating Expenses 7,298.4       3,132.2       4,166.1       42.9% 2,964.0       
Other Financing Uses 1,551.6       524.0          1,027.6       33.8% 233.8          
Total Uses 8,850.0$     3,656.2$     5,193.8$     41.3% 3,197.7$     

ATTACHMENT 2

101 of 109



City of Covington
Quarterly Performance Report - Street Operations

as of 6/30/2012

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Finance Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\08-14-12 2nd Qtr Financial Report\2012 Street Quarterly ChartsReport 08/08/2012

Budget Rev v Act Rev v Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2

Budget Exp v Act YTD Budget v Actual Rev & Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Less: Operating Transfers and Other 
Financing Uses

Chart 3  Chart 5

 

 
 

0 

75 

150 

225 

300 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

75 

150 

225 

300 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

75 

150 

225 

300 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

REV 

EXP 

0 

200 

400 

600 

800 

1,000 

      

Franchise 
20.8% 

IntGov 
36.2% 

Charges for 
Goods & 

Svcs 
1.0% 

Other 
Financing 
Sources 
41.9% 

Revenues by Category 

Sal 
30.8% 

Ben 
12.7% 

Supplies 
4.5% 

Chgs for Svcs 
36.4% 

IntGov 
4.9% 

Capital 
1.5% 

Other 
Financing 

Uses 
9.2% 

Expenditures by Category 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

450 

500 

2011 2012 

Year over Year Revenue Comparison 

Oper Xfer In 

Misc 

Investment Interest 

Intergovernmental 
Revenues 

Cable TV Franchise 

Legend

Cur Year

Budget

Actual
Data in Thousands of $

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual Actual

Cable TV Franchise 199.0$         98.0$       101.0$     49.3% 100.7$     
Intergovernmental Revenues 371.7           170.3       201.4       45.8% 178.9       
Charges for Goods & Svcs 4.9           (4.9)          0.0% 178.9       
Investment Interest 0.3               0.1           0.2           46.5% 0.2           
Miscellaneous -               0.0           (0.0)          0.0% -           
Total Operating Revenues 571.0           273.4       297.6       47.9% 458.7       
Operating Transfer In 245.9           197.0       48.9         80.1% 117.4       
Total Sources 816.9$         470.3$     346.5$     57.6% 576.1$     

Salaries & Wages 269.3$         133.7$     135.6$     49.6% 109.7$     
Benefits 106.2           55.3         50.9         52.1% 47.1         
Supplies 59.0             19.4         39.6         32.9% 9.9           
Charges for Services 266.5           158.1       108.5       59.3% 98.9         
Intergovernmental 128.3           21.3         107.0       16.6% 37.6         
Capital -               6.5           (6.5)          0.0% -           
Total Operating Expenses 829.3           394.2       435.1       47.5% 303.3       
Other Financing Uses 78.8             39.8         39.0         50.5% 292.0       
Total Uses 908.1$         434.0$     474.1$     47.8% 595.2$     

102 of 109



City of Covington
Quarterly Performance Report - Development Services

as of 6/30/2012

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Finance Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\08-14-12 2nd Qtr Financial Report\2012 DS Quarterly ChartsReport 08/08/2012

Bud v Act Revenue Rev v Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2

Bud v Act Expenditures Budget v Actual Rev & Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 3 Chart 4 Chart 5

# of SFR Permits - YTD SFR Permit Activity by Month SFR Permit Valuation - YTD

Bud v Act Expenditures
Thousands of $

Chart 6 Chart 7                  Chart 8

 
 

0 
50 

100 
150 
200 
250 
300 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 
50 

100 
150 
200 
250 
300 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 
50 

100 
150 
200 
250 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

REV 

EXP 

0 
200 
400 
600 
800 

1,000 
1,200 
1,400 
1,600 

    

Licenses 
6.4% 

Permits 
65.4% 

IntGov Rev 
2.5% 

Chgs for Svcs 
25.3% 

Int Earnings 
0.1% 

Misc 
-0.2% 

Revenues by Category 

Salaries 
65.4% 

Benefits 
22.9% 

Supplies 
0.1% 

Chgs for Svcs 
7.8% 

IntGov 
3.8% 

Expenditures by Category 

 (100) 

 -    

 100  

 200  

 300  

 400  

 500  

 600  

 700  

 800  

2011 2012 

Year over Year Revenue Comparison 

Operating Transfer In 

Misc 

Int Earnings 

Chgs for Svcs 

IntGov Rev 

Permits 

Licenses 

0 
50 

100 
150 
200 
250 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

50 

100 

     
2012 2011 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

J F M A M J J A S O N D 

2011 2012 

0 

0.5 

1 

1.5 

     
2010 2011 

0 

5,000 

10,000 

15,000 

20,000 

    

2012 2011 

Legend

Cur Year

Budget

Actual
Data in Thousands of $

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual YTD Actual

Licenses 47.4             45.0             2.4               95.0% 30.1             
Permits 591.6           457.6           134.0           77.4% 344.9           
Intergovernmental Svcs 72.4             17.8             24.6% 4.6               
Charges for Services 664.9           177.2           487.7           26.7% 305.4           
Interest Income -               0.9               (0.9)              0.0% 0.6               
Miscellaneous -               (1.3)              1.3               0.0% 4.2               
Total Operating Revenues 1,376.3        697.2           624.5           50.7% 689.8           
Operating Transfer In -               -               -               0.0% -               
Total Sources 1,376.3$      697.2$         624.5$         50.7% 689.8$         

Salaries & Wages 469.1           217.5           251.6           46.4% 211.4           
Benefits 148.3           76.2             72.1             51.4% 68.1             
Supplies 5.0               0.4               4.5               9.0% 1.5               
Charges for Services 62.4             25.9             36.5             41.5% 20.9             
Intergovernmental 45.2             12.5             32.7             27.7% 8.0               
Total Operating Expenses 730.1           332.6           397.5           45.6% 309.8           
Other Financing Uses 151.9           75.6             76.3             49.8% 71.0             
Total Uses 881.9$         408.2$         473.7$         46.3% 380.8$         

103 of 109



City of Covington
Quarterly Performance Report - Parks and Recreation Services

as of 6/30/2012

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Finance Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\08-14-12 2nd Qtr Financial Report\2012 Parks Quarterly ChartsReport 08/08/2012

SUMMARY CHARTS DEPARTMENTS

 
 

Total Budget Rev v Act Total Rev v Exp Bud v Act Exp - Parks

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2

Total Budget Exp v Act Total Bud v Act Rev & Exp Bud v Act Exp - Aquatics

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 3 Chart 4

Year over Year Revenue Aquatics Rev Comparison Bud v Act Exp - Recreation

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 5 Chart 6

Year over Year Attendance  Bud v Act Exp - Parks Mtce

Thousands of $

Chart 7

 
 

0 

100 

200 

300 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

100 

200 

300 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

100 

200 

300 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

REV EXP 

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

            

0 
5 

10 
15 
20 
25 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

25 

50 

75 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

5 

10 

15 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

Taxes 
46.1% Aquatics 

Revenue 
50.0% 

Misc 
3.9% 

Revenues by Category 

Sal 
48.3% 

Ben 
14.6% 

Supplies 
8.5% 

Intergov Svcs 
0.6% 

Chgs for Svcs 
14.4% 

Other 
13.6% 

Expenditures by Category 

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

250 

500 

750 

2012 2011 

Chgs for 
G&S 
Misc 

Inv Int 

Aquatics 
Rev 
Taxes 0 

200 

400 

                   

2012 2011 

0 

50,000 

     

2012 2011 

Legend

Cur Year

Budget

Actual
Data in Thousands of $

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual YTD Actual

Taxes 456.0$         248.9$         207.1$         54.6% 226.3$         
Grants -               -               -               0.0% -               
Aquatics Revenue 498.9           270.1           228.8           54.1% 241.4           
Investment Interest 0.2               0.1               0.1               52.9% 0.1               
Charges for Goods & Services -               0.2               (0.2)              0.0% 6.0               
Miscellaneous 41.9             20.9             21.0             49.9% 24.1             
Total Operating Revenues 997.0           540.2           456.7           54.2% 497.9           
Other Financing Sources 211.6           113.8           97.8             53.8% 104.4           
Total Sources 1,208.5$      654.0$         554.5$         54.1% 602.3$         

Salaries & Wages 599.1$         267.5$         331.6$         44.6% 242.0$         
Benefits 178.5           80.8             97.7             45.3% 83.2             
Supplies 115.1           46.9             68.3             40.7% 51.7             
Intergovernmental Svcs 8.1               3.5               4.5               43.8% 2.8               
Charges for Services 196.0           79.8             116.2           40.7% 66.1             
Capital Outlay -               -               -               0.0% -               
Total Operating Expenses 1,096.8        478.5           618.3           43.6% 445.9           
Other Financing Uses 149.7           75.0             74.7             50.1% 77.4             
Total Uses 1,246.5$      553.5$         693.0$         44.4% 523.3$         

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 121.1$         55.2$           65.9$           45.6% 52.0$           
Benefits 34.7             16.9             17.8             48.6% 16.0             
Supplies 0.9               0.2               0.6               26.9% 0.0               
Charges for Services 7.8               1.3               6.5               16.9% 1.1               
Intergovernmental Svcs 0.9               0.3               0.6               32.2% 0.4               
Total Operating Expenses 165.4           73.9             91.5             44.7% 69.6             
Other Financing Uses 25.6             12.8             12.8             50.0% 13.7             
Total Uses 191.0$         86.7$           104.3$         45.4% 83.3$           

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 345.4$         154.3$         191.0$         44.7% 143.4$         
Benefits 95.3             40.2             55.2             42.1% 39.3             
Supplies 101.0           33.8             67.2             33.4% 45.3             
Charges for Services 110.0           57.3             52.7             52.1% 47.6             
Intergovernmental Svcs 7.1               3.2               3.9               45.6% 2.4               
Total Operating Expenses 658.8           288.8           370.0           43.8% 278.0           
Other Financing Uses 85.9             43.0             43.0             50.0% 44.4             
Total Uses 744.7$         331.8$         412.9$         44.6% 322.4$         

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 65.5$           28.8$           36.7$           43.9% 26.0$           
Benefits 29.1             14.5             14.6             49.9% 12.5             
Supplies 9.1               12.6             (3.4)              137.4% 6.1               
Charges for Services 54.1             18.7             35.4             34.6% 14.5             
Capital Outlay -               -               -               0.0% -               
Total Operating Expenses 157.8           74.5             83.2             47.2% 59.0             
Other Financing Uses 17.8             9.1               8.7               51.0% 9.0               
Total Uses 175.6$         83.6$           92.0$           47.6% 68.0$           

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual YTD Actual

Salaries & Wages 67.1$           29.2$           37.9$           43.5% 20.7$           
Benefits 19.4             9.2               10.1             47.6% 15.4             
Supplies 4.2               0.3               3.9               7.8% 0.4               
Charges for Services 24.1             2.5               22                10.2% 2.9               
Intergovernmental Svcs -               -               -               0.0% -               
Total Operating Expenses 114.8           41.2             73.6             35.9% 39.3             
Other Financing Uses 20.3             10.1             10.1             50.0% 10.3             
Total Uses 135.1$         51.3$           83.7$           38.0% 49.6$           

104 of 109



City of Covington
Quarterly Performance Report - SWM Operations

as of 6/30/2012

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Finance Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\08-14-12 2nd Qtr Financial Report\2012 SWM Quarterly ChartsReport 08/08/2012

Budget Rev v Act Rev v Exp Year over Year Drainage Fee Collections

Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 1 Chart 2

Budget Exp v Act Budget v Actual Rev & Exp

Thousands of $ Thousands of $ Thousands of $

Chart 3 Chart 4 Chart 5

 

 
 

 -    

 100.0  

 200.0  

 300.0  

 400.0  

 500.0  

 600.0  

 700.0  

 800.0  

 900.0  

 1,000.0  

      

2011 

2012 

0 

200 

400 

600 

800 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

200 

400 

600 

800 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

0 

250 

500 

1 
12 

2 3 4 5 6 
12 

REV EXP 

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

      

Grants 
1.6% Intergov 

Revenues 
4.3% 

Drainage 
Utility 
92.5% 

Investment 
Interest 

0.7% 

Miscellaneo
us 

-0.9% 

Revenues by Category 

Sal 
34.2% 

Ben 
14.7% Supplies 

2.4% 
Chgs for 

Svcs 
15.9% 

Intgov 
3.8% 

Other Fin 
Uses 

28.9% 

SWM Debt 
Svc P & I 

0.1% 

Expenditures by Category 

Legend

Cur Year

Budget

Actual
Data in Thousands of $

Rev & Exp - YTD 2012 2012 $ Rem % Coll 2011
Budget Actual YTD Actual

Grants 88.8$           15.5$           73.2             17.5% 4.5$             
KC Salmon Conservancy -               -               -               -               
Intergovernmental Revenues 55.9             41.7             14.2             74.6% -               
Drainage Utility 1,704.1        891.0           813.0           52.3% 821.0           
Investment Interest -               6.8               (6.8)              0.0% 0.9               
Miscellaneous -               (8.6)              8.6               -               
Comp/Loss -               -               -               -               
Total Operating Revenues 1,848.7        946.4           902.3           51.2% 826.4           
Transfers In -               -               -               -               
Total Sources 1,848.7$      946.4$         902.3$         51.2% 826.4$         

Salaries 538.3$         233.6$         304.7$         43.4% 228.7$         
Benefits 199.4           99.1             100.4           49.7% 90.4             
Supplies 43.7             16.7             27.0             38.3% 6.0               
Charges for Services 339.0           108.6           230.4           32.0% 51.1             
Intergovernmental 87.3             26.3             61.1             30.1% 22.3             
Capital Outlay -               13.2             (13.2)            -               
Total Operating Expenditures 1,207.8        497.5           710.3           41.2% 398.5           
Other Financing Uses 499.7           197.1           302.6           39.4% 203.4           
SWM Debt Service P & I 34.7             1.0               33.7             2.8% 1.0               
Total Uses 1,742.1$      695.6$         1,046.6$      39.9% 602.8$         

105 of 109



CITY OF COVINGTON
MAJOR REVENUE REVIEW

2009 - Current

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Finance Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\08-14-12 2nd Qtr Financial Report\Major Revenue ComparisonECONIND 08/08/2012

Source/Data

YTD Annual

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 1,187,946            1,306,781            10.0%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 2,850,000$          1,306,781            45.9%
2011 Annual Revenues 2,904,000$          2,947,658$          101.5%
2010 Annual Revenues 3,025,000$          2,795,130$          92.4%

 

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 1,196,537$          1,216,987$          1.7%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 2,340,000$          1,216,987$          52.0%
2011 Annual Revenues 2,356,779$          2,339,013$          99.2%
2010 Annual Revenues 2,112,000$          1,976,819$          93.6%

 

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 969,497$             1,084,079$          11.8%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 2,012,475$          1,084,079$          53.9%
2011 Annual Revenues 2,016,000$          1,785,767$          88.6%
2010 Annual Revenues 2,060,060$          1,778,701$          86.3%

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 178,909$             170,287$             -4.8%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 371,700$             170,287$             45.8%
2011 Annual Revenues 378,202$             366,520$             96.9%
2010 Annual Revenues 380,000$             378,263$             99.5%

 

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 100,663$             98,037$               -2.6%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 199,000$             98,037$               49.3%
2011 Annual Revenues 184,000$             196,256$             106.7%
2010 Annual Revenues 184,000$             197,813$             107.5%

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 344,857$             457,606$             32.7%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 566,835$             457,606$             80.7%
2011 Annual Revenues 327,766$             556,842$             169.9%
2010 Annual Revenues 175,500$             391,659$             223.2%

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 241,421$             270,116$             11.9%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 498,880$             270,116$             54.1%
2011 Annual Revenues 486,330$             466,487$             95.9%
2010 Annual Revenues 423,746$             462,942$             109.2%

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 821,004$             891,009$             8.5%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 1,704,052$          891,009$             52.3%
2011 Annual Revenues 1,542,260$          1,606,794$          104.2%
2010 Annual Revenues 1,258,896$          1,443,633$          114.7%

2Q-11 2Q-12 % Diff
Qtr - Qtr Revenues 259,790$             301,066$             15.9%

Budget Actual % Collected 
2012 Annual Revenues 325,000$             301,066$             92.6%
2011 Annual Revenues 300,000$             390,364$             130.1%
2010 Annual Revenues 350,000$             322,179$             92.1%

 

1 The utility tax rate increased to 6% in 2012 from 5.5%. 
* Attendance, permitting activity, and average unit sales price are shown on the secondary axis to compare with revenue intake. 

Budget vs Actual

Utility Tax1

Revenue by Month (shown on a cash basis)

Sales Tax

Property Tax

ST
RE

ET
 F

U
N

D
G

EN
ER

A
L 

FU
N

D

Fuel Tax

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET)/Avg Sales Price/Unit *

Development Services Permitting Revenue/Activity *

SWM Fees

Aquatics Revenue/Attendance *

Comcast Franchise Fees

D
EV

 S
V

CS
SW

M
RE

ET
PA

RK
S

 150  

 225  

 300  

 375  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
12 

Q1 Q2 

Thousand $ 

 -  
 175  
 350  
 525  
 700  
 875  

 1,050  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
12 

Q1 Q2 

Thousand $ 

 -   
 0.5  
 1.0  
 1.5  
 2.0  

 -  
 50  

 100  
 150  
 200  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
12 

Q1 Q2 
Q2 A

ve
ra

ge
 U

ni
t S

al
e 

P
ric

e 

Thousand $ 

 -  

 125  

 250  

 375  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
12 

Q1 Q2 

Thousand $ 

0  

5  

10  

15  

 -  
 60  

 120  
 180  
 240  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
12 

Q1 Q2 

P
er

m
its

 

Thousand $ 

 $2,650,000  
 $2,700,000  
 $2,750,000  
 $2,800,000  
 $2,850,000  
 $2,900,000  
 $2,950,000  
 $3,000,000  
 $3,050,000  

10 

Budget 

Actual 

 $2,650,000  
 $2,700,000  
 $2,750,000  
 $2,800,000  
 $2,850,000  
 $2,900,000  
 $2,950,000  
 $3,000,000  
 $3,050,000  

10 

Budget 

Actual 

 -    

 1,000  

 2,000  

 3,000  

 4,000  

12 11 10 
Thousand $ 

 -    
 500  

 1,000  
 1,500  
 2,000  
 2,500  

12 11 10 
Thousand $ 

 -    

 200  

 400  

 600  

12 11 10 

Budget Actual 
Thousand $ 

 -    
 500  

 1,000  
 1,500  
 2,000  
 2,500  

12 11 10 
Thousand $ 

 -    

 200  

 400  

 600  

 800  

12 11 10 
Thousand $ 

 -  

 25  

 50  

 75  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
12 

Q1 Q2 

Thousand $ 

 -    

 100  

 200  

 300  

 400  

12 11 10 
Thousand $ 

 -    
 2  
 4  
 6  
 8  
 10  

 -  
 20  
 40  
 60  
 80  

 100  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
12 

Q1 Q2 
Q2 

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 

Thousand $ 

 -    

 200  

 400  

 600  

12 11 10 

Thousand $ 

 -  
 200  
 400  
 600  
 800  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 

Thousand $ 

 -    
 300  
 600  
 900  

 1,200  
 1,500  
 1,800  

12 11 10 

Thousand $ 

 -  

 20  

 40  

 60  

Q2 Q3 Jan 
10 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
11 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan 
12 

Q1 Q2 

Thousand $ 

 -    
 50  

 100  
 150  
 200  
 250  

12 11 10 
Thousand $ 

ATTACHMENT 3

106 of 109



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  August 14, 2012 
 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 28, 2012 Regular Meeting 
 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday September 11, 2012 Special & Regular Meetings 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

107 of 109



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, August 28, 2012                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  August 14, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  August 9 Meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  August 9 Meeting. 
• Budget Priorities Advisory Committee Liaison Darren Dofelmier: Aug. 1 and 15 Meetings. 

 
• Future Meetings: 

 Parks & Recreation:  Next Meeting – September 20; August 15 and September 19 Meetings Canceled. 
 

 Planning:   Next Meeting – September 20; August 2, August 16, and September 6 Meetings Canceled. 
 

 Economic Development Council:  Next Meeting – September 27; July 26 Meeting Canceled - Lack of 
Quorum; August 23 Meeting Canceled. 

 
NEW BUSINESS - NONE 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  

Draft 
as of 08/09/12 

 

108 of 109

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETINGS AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, September 11, 2012                                                                    City Council Chambers 
6:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Arts Commission applicants beginning at 6:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn (Tentative) 
• Mayor’s Day of Concern for the Hungry Proclamation (Throm) 
• Tobacco Free Teens Back to School Week Proclamation (Kent School District) 
• National Recovery Month Proclamation (Slate) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Arts Commission (Council) 
2. Adopt Revised Employee Handbook (Beaufrere) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  

Draft 
as of 08/09/12 

 

109 of 109

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	08-14-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, August 14, 2012                                                                           City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	C-1 Green Sheet 08-14-2012 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 07.10.12 Sp for Interviews & Reg CC
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 07.24.2012 Reg CC
	C-2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 08-14-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Voucher Attachments
	C-3 Green Sheet 08-14-12 Aqua Vista Drainage Project Blue sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-3
	Covington City Council Meeting
	RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director
	ATTACHMENT(S):
	PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, City Engineer
	EXPLANATION:
	ALTERNATIVES:

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 Att. 1 - Engineers Estimate
	Estimate

	Consent C-3 Attachment 2 Att. 2 - DOE Stormwater Grant
	C-4 Green Sheet Covington Commercial Easement_Covington Water_ BLUE SHEET
	Consent Agenda Item C-4
	Covington City Council Meeting

	Consent C-4 Attachment 1_Easement_for_Water_Pipeline DOC _CWD_(2012).docx
	Item 1 Blue Sheet FINAL Blue Sheet 2012 Comprehensive Plan Amendments all edits 8-3-12
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 FINAL Attachment 1 Written public comments recived on the 2012 Comp Plan amendments
	Item 1 Attachment 2 FINAL Attachment 2 Ord _Adopting_2012_Comp_Plan_Amendments_Final
	Item 1 Attachment 2 Exhibit A CPA 2012-01 -Proposed 2012 amendment to the DT element
	Item 1 Attachment 2 Exhibit B DRA 2012-01 -DT D  Design Stds 18.31.080 Permitted uses_070912
	Chapter 18.31
	Downtown Development and Design Standards
	18.31.080 Permitted land uses.
	18.31.090 Downtown zoning districts density and dimension standards.

	Item 1 Attachment 2 Exhibit C CPA 2012-02 -Draft Comprehensive Plan amendments_annexation 072312
	Item 2 Blue Sheet FINAL Blue Sheet on Consultant Report for Northern Gateway UGA Analysis Report_SBS Edit_CLEAN
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 3 Blue Sheet 8-14-12 2nd Qtr Financial Reports Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment 1 Second Qtr Report Draft 1
	Item 3 Attachment 2 2012 GF Quarterly Charts
	ReportA

	Item 3 Attachment 2 a 2012 Street Quarterly Charts
	Report

	Item 3 Attachment 2 b 2012 DS Quarterly Charts
	Report

	Item 3 Attachment 2 c 2012 Parks Quarterly Charts
	Report

	Item 3 Attachment 2 d 2012 SWM Quarterly Charts
	Report

	Item 3 Attachment 3 Major Revenue Comparison
	ECONIND

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	08-28-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, August 28, 2012                                                                          City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	09-11-12 Special for Interviews and Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, September 11, 2012                                                                    City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




